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Bank Profile
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Banco Weng Hang is the main subsidiary of Wing Hang Bank Group. We were
first established in 1937 as Wing Hang Ngan Ho by the late Mr. Y K FUNG
in Guangzhou to carry on the business of a money changer. In 1941, the
company was moved to Macau, and then re-established its business in Hong
Kong in 1945. Both companies in Hong Kong and Macau became associated
in 1946.

In 1963, the company was re-structured as a limited company in Macau.
In 1973, Banco Weng Hang was incorporated and was granted a banking
license. We opened the first Ho Lan Un branch in 1976, providing the Bank
with a solid foundation for greater development.

In 1984, with the ambition to further expand the business, the Board reached
the agreement with Wing Hang Bank Hong Kong to acquire the shares of
Banco Weng Hang, turning us to its subsidiary and a member of The Bank of
New York Group.

With the continuous development in the Group’s business, the shares of Wing
Hang Bank were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in July 1993. We
also completed the merger of Chekiang First Bank in August 2004, acquired
Inchroy Credit Corporation Ltd in January 2007, and established Wing Hang
Bank (China) Limited in Shenzhen in June 2007. At the end of 2010, the
Group's total assets amounted to HK$159.3 billion, and has over 60 branches
and representative offices throughout Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China.

Banco Weng Hang provides a full range of banking services, and has a
network of 12 branches in Macau. At the end of 2010, the Bank'’s total assets
exceeded MOP20.5 billion, and is regarded as one of the leading banks in the
territory.
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2010 Results in Brief

(LBFIRFTlzs) ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
o, O )
Increase/
(Decrease)
2FEHEHE FOR THE YEAR 2010 2009 %
FrF 1% i A Profit after taxation 242,158 223,225 8.5%
%8 Dividends 231,600 120,000 93.0%
REHRFTE AT YEAR END 2010 2009 %
fR R =B Total equity 1,602,555 1,572,460 1.9%
BIER Total deposits 17,373,682 17,594,676 (1.3%)
EFEXR Advances to customers 13,275,519 10,834,611 22.5%
BEE Total Assets 20,469,947 20,026,563 2.2%
kb= RATIO % %
PR BRI L 3 Cost to income Ratio 435 46.0
FHEERRE Return on Average Assets 1.2 1.1
FHRRE R EHRE Return on Average Shareholders’ Funds 15.3 15.0
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Five Year Financial Summary

F TR P MOP thousand 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
RERE S Shareholders’ Fund 1,118,407 1,354,199 1,394,291 1,572,460 1,602,555
BIFR Total Deposits 16,414,106 17,417,427 15,647,000 17,594,676 17,373,682
BEFEX Advances to Customers 6,600,912 9,488,553 11,301,355 10,834,611 13,275,519
BEE Total Assets 18,829,047 21,211,079 19,199,833 20,026,563 20,469,947
EEIA Operating Income 428,684 562,536 538,289 486,621 482,807
BEL M Operating Expenses (143,851) (184,445) (228,094) (224,072) (209,883)
B 7t 15 a5 ) Profit after taxation 251,328 337,204 251,161 223,225 242,158
= Dividends - (102,000) (210,000) (120,000) (231,600)
b= Ratio 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
BiFth®x Loan to Deposit Ratio 40.2 54.5 72.2 61.6 76.4
BT B E* Capital Adequacy Ratio* 11.9 11.5 11.2 13.3 11.8
AN B A LY R Cost to income Ratio 33.6 32.8 42.4 46.0 43.5
SRV EECES Return on Average Assets 1.6 1.7 1.2 1.1 1.2
TR ESREIFRE  Return on Average 25.3 27.3 18.3 15.0 15.3

Shareholders” Funds

* RIS RERBZZRMAE
Calculated in accordance with the requirements set out by the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau.
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Shareholders
WING HANG BANK, LIMITED.
Incorporated in Hong Kong

Board of Directors
Chairman
Dr. FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick JP

Directors

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael
Mr HO Chi Wai Louis

Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah

Supervisory Council
Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen
Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Executive Committee of the General Assembly

Mr KWOK Man Cheung
Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr HO Chi Wai Louis

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley
Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah



EFREE

Chairman’s Statement

SRS JP
BERFTHAAZ

Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick JP

Chairman & Chief Executive
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China’s robust economic growth continued to benefit the tourism industry in
Macau. Real GDP in Macau grew by 26.2% in 2010. Riding on this economic
growth, the Bank’s results recorded a healthy increase amid a challenging
competitive landscape. Operating profit increased by 4.0% to MOP273
million as compared to MOP262 million in 2009. Total assets amounted grew
2.2% to MOP20.4 billion while shareholders’ fund amounted increased 1.9%
to MOP1.6 billion. Return on average assets and average shareholders’ funds
were 1.1% and 14.1%, respectively.

Turning to performance, the Bank recorded satisfactory loan growth of more
than 20% to MOP13.3 billion. Particularly, the Bank assisted customers in
applying for the Government Interest Subsidy Scheme. Our efficient service
has resulted in securing an above-average market share under this Scheme.
After the Scheme expired in the second half of the year, the Bank rode on the
momentum and continued to meet individual customers’ need on residential
mortgages. As a result, the Bank was able to achieve a 44% growth in its
mortgage lending business. Furthermore, the robust job market and higher
household income boosted demand for consumer lending products. The Bank
was quick to take advantage of this opportunity by successfully launching
several well-accepted car and consumer finance products. Consumer loans,
as a result, recorded a 26% growth. And owing to the Bank's stringent
adherence to its prudent credit practices, the quality of the Bank’s loan
portfolio remains sound. As at year-end of 2010, the ratio of impaired loans
to total loans remained at the relatively low level of 0.20%. Withdrawals by
corporate customers to meet business needs during the economic upturn led
to a small decrease of 1.2% in total customer deposits.

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 7
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Chairman’s Statement
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In the area of non-interest income, benefited from fervent demand for
property loans, mortgage-related insurance income grew by more than
30%. Buoyant consumer demand and upbeat tourist spending led to a more
than 10% increase in credit card income. On the other hand, the volatile
Hong Kong stock market throughout 2010 has dampened the investment
sentiment of non-institutional investors. As a result, the Bank experienced a
slight decrease in stock brokerage income. On the other hand, our wealth
management business achieved growth of more than 20% during the
year. We believe there is still ample room for further demand of our wealth
management products in the low interest rate environment. In addition to
enhancing the internet platform, the Bank targets to launch its Smartphone
trading platform in 2011 to provide more efficient, convenient and quality
stock brokerage services to our customers.

The combination of rapid economic growth and low interest rates continued
to push up property prices. This prompted the government to introduce
property lending guideline on 1 December to deter speculation. This guideline
should help to rein in systemic risk in the banking system. Nevertheless,
the measures that most directly impact property prices may come from the
government’s policies on the supply side, in particular the government'’s
pledge to complete 19,000 units of public housing in phases within two years.

The Bank currently has 12 branches. As at the end of December 2010, the
Bank employed 433 people in Macau while the Group employed a total of
3,241 people.

The Bank’s parent company, Wing Hang Bank, Hong Kong, established a
wholly owned subsidiary, Wing Hang Bank (China) Limited (“WHBCL") in
2007. With headquarters in Shenzhen and geographical focus in the Pearl
River, WHBCL offers a full range of Renminbi services in China. Benefiting
from the CEPA VI arrangement, the Group's first cross-location sub-branch
was opened in March 2010 at Foshan. WHBCL currently has a total network
of ten branches and sub-branches on the Mainland, covering Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Shanghai and Zhuhai. Beijing branch is expected to open in the
second quarter subject to the final approval of CBRC. The Bank will continue
to develop the long-term opportunity to expand RMB-related business in
Macau. Customers can take advantage of our presence in China to enjoy
more efficient and comprehensive services.
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As a well-established financial institution with long history in Macau, the Bank
has a strong commitment in fulfilling corporate social responsibility (“CSR"). A
CSR Committee was set up during the year to develop strategies, policies and
guidelines. In 2010 energy saving program, reduction in paper consumption
and waste recycling, have resulted in total reduction of carbon emission
equivalent to 133 metric tons. In June a Social Service Team was formed to
provide community services. In the seven months since its formation, the
Social Service Team had devoted an encouraging 1,494 hours in volunteer
work. In fact, the Bank has for years strived to contribute to the community
by actively supporting and participating in the activities of various charitable
organizations such as ORBIS and Caritas Macau. The Bank also cares about
the physical and mental health of our employees. During the Staff Caring
Weeks Program, the Bank organized interest classes, parenting and other
field activities. We aim to foster a better understanding of the importance
of health, family and a work-life balance. The Bank will build on this good
first step and continue to devote resources and efforts in carrying out our
commitment in the various aspects of CSR in the future.

Looking ahead, the operating environment will continue to be challenging in
2011. Rising inflation have prompted central banks to contemplate tightening
monetary policies. If the interest rate rise triggers the reversal of capital
flows, it may lead to a correction in asset markets and increased volatility.
The lingering sovereign debt crisis in Europe and unrest in the Middle East
and North African regions add uncertainty to the global economic recovery.
However, Macau will benefit from the continual integration of the Pearl
River Delta under the Chinese Government’s new Twelfth Five-Year Plan.
The construction of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau bridge and the Pearl River
Delta railway links, as well as the development of the Hengging Island create
favorable conditions in terms of external transportation, expanded land and
other resources for Macau'’s future development. We envisage the Macau
economy will continue to grow under such a stable environment.

Finally | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
and thanks to our colleagues for exerting their utmost effort during the

year. And on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would also like to thank our
customers for their continued support and counsel.

FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick
Chairman

Macau, 21st March, 2011

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 9
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The balance sheet and income statement of the Bank (the “financial
statements”) are prepared in accordance with Macau banking laws and
audited by KPMG. In the opinion of the Supervisory Council, the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at
31 December 2010, and of the profit for the year then ended.

President of Supervisory Council
LO Wai Ching Maggie

Macau, March 21, 2011
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report
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As a well-established financial institution with a long history in Macau, we
have a strong sense of commitment in fulfilling corporate social responsibility

("CSR") and ensuring that it is part of our everyday operation.

It is in our interest to act upon our goals of CSR. We realize that the more
harmonious the place in which we run our business, the greater the chance
of success. Therefore, CSR has always been an integral part of the Bank’s
corporate strategy. It is our belief that a responsible business creates a win-
win situation for the Bank, its shareholders, customers, employees, business
partners, and the society at large. We recognize that good corporate

citizenship reflects on our brand and values.

At Banco Weng Hang, corporate social responsibility represents its
commitment to promote business activities that bring economic, social
and environmental benefits to the society. We attain the targets by actively

fulfilling our governance, environmental and community responsibilities.

AIRTTER T R B B TR BRI 2 b | 28D
Our Volunteer Team assisted in the ORBIS Flying Eye Hospital visit.

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 11



EENEREHS

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

EREME

hEHEEFTEE

RTBEHEBLELBETIE  RITHLBEL
SEMEZES  URIELEMSEEZRE - B

BHEsl - ZZEETR BENERMADR

EHEREEREIHNT RITHEEHLSEAR

BREELETEENEN  BETHSCELCEHE

B EZ 5K -

BECEHEEETIFEBRMNZ X TERREE
HITRED R EEFEESFIE2TIFRR -

BXER

AIRITR(E - REPREELRY - BR1TEE
PHBRIFBEZEETLE - GERIFRITER
2R ANARERZHE -

ERSBEZERRET  ROTZLEHLGEM
ZEETYEEARRITZEEEATHE - AR
EEEER L RIBEERN  BRIEFERERE
RERIRT BEEARITZATEEZARIL -
MBI 2 EE - RARITHELETAREI
PR LR IR T A BRI IR ZE -

%

{

(B

ARITEYR2E [RPIAERE

=EES]

We sponsored and participated in the Macau Caritas Bazaar.
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Governance Responsibility

CSR Management

To plan and manage our CSR activities in a systematic and coherent manner,
we set up a CSR Committee to develop strategies, policies and guidelines
on CSR. The Committee also approves, supervises and monitors the
implementation of all CSR initiatives. Our monitoring and review system on
the CSR framework is on-going so that we continuously improve our CSR

strategies.

A CSR Working Team and various support teams working under the direction
of the CSR Committee are responsible for the promotion, support and

implementation of CSR activities.

Business Ethics

We strongly believe that providing quality services to customers is a key
element to maintain good relationship with our customers. This is essential
to sustain growth in our business, and is definitely in the interest of our

shareholders.

With an ever-changing business environment, the CSR Committee monitors
closely the Bank's corporate governance practices to ensure all our activities
are conducted with professionalism, high ethical standards, integrity and
honesty. Compliance, which governs our daily operations, is every employee’s
responsibility. We have on-going compliance training to uphold the Bank’s

standard of business practices and services.
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Environmental Responsibility
Being environmentally responsible not only save us operating costs when we

use our natural resources more efficiently, it also helps us build a less polluting

environment and improve our quality of life.

Internally, the Bank has accomplished the following environmental protection
initiatives in 2010. Compared to a year ago our environmental efforts per

employee are:

e Reduced consumption of garbage bags by 53.45%

e Saved additional 9.08% electricity

e Increased printer cartridges/toners recycling by 66.3%

We also show our support to various environmental protection activities, like

the “Earth Hour"” organized by WWF, the '“Energy Conservation Week"” and

"Green Week" activities organized by the Macau SAR Government.

FHIEWE TRERETES
Regular recreational activities were organized for our staff and their families.

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 13
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Our staff actively participated in different volunteer services.
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Community Responsibility

Employee Enrichment

Our staff are our greatest asset. Nurturing out staff and help them relieve
their stress increase their efficiency and performance at work. We realize
that consistently excellent staff performance and strong commitment are

important to the Bank’s success.

We treasure our employees by providing a safe and quality-working

environment as well as suitable and generous benefits to meet their needs.

Training and Further Studies

We always focus on nurturing our employees to be all-round performers.
Programs for Management Trainees and Super Service are held to nurture
outstanding staff and enable the Bank to compete in a dynamic business
environment. Education allowances are offered to employees to encourage

them to further equip themselves to best serve the Bank and the customers.
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Work-life Balance

In 2010, the Bank continued to launch Staff Caring Weeks Program with the
theme of “Balance well to Reach High” to cultivate a strong sense of social
responsibility and raise the importance of health, family, leisure and life-long

learning amongst our workforce.

In order to help employees relieve their stress and maintain good relationships
with their families, various recreational and outdoor activities were organized

during the year for our staff and their families.

Community Services

We believe that by devoting resources and efforts in community services,
the Bank can contribute to the building of a harmonious society. The Bank's
Volunteer Service Team was set up in June 2010 to actively participate in

social activities and contribute our efforts to the well being of the needy.

Donations and Sponsorships

The young generation is the pillars of our future, so we set up the “Elite
Student Award” Scheme starting from 2005 to recognize the achievements
of primary and secondary students in different arenas. Up till now, over 600

students had been awarded.
In the past year, we have donated over MOP430,000 to various charity

organizations, including Macau Carits, Tong Sin Tong, Macau Red Cross,

Orbis, World Vision and Fu Hong Society.

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 15
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Volunteer Services

The Bank gives more than just money.

With senior management support and encouragement, our employees
commit their time, energy and care to numerous segments of the society,
including students, senior citizens and the disabled. In 2010, the Bank
volunteers devoted 1,494 community service hours for a number of worthy

causes.

We have been a supporter of the ORBIS for years. Over 40 of the staff and
560 students took part in the “Action Blue 2010 — Wear for Sight” campaign.
The donations to ORBIS are used to train medical professionals in developing

countries to enhance their skills on treating patients to restore their eyesight.

Future

We strive to continuously commit our efforts in all CSR aspects because
our success in business is so closely related to our devotion in corporate
social responsibilities. CSR practices in our Bank are dynamic and on-going.
Looking ahead, we will continue to identify opportunities to enhance our
CSR initiatives in order to benefit our customers, employees, environment,

community and shareholders.
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To the shareholders of Banco Weng Hang, S.A.
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banco Weng
Hang, S.A. (“the Bank"”) set out on pages 19 to 78, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31December 2010, and the income statement, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards of
the Macau Administrative Region (“Macau SAR") and the requirements as
set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances; and maintaining adequate and accurate
accounting records.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards and
Technical Standards of Auditing of the Macau SAR. Those standards require
that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing appropriate procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s professional judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 17
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all
material respect, of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December
2010, and of its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards of the Macau
SAR.

This report is intended solely for filing with the Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau.

Lei lun Mei, Registered Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

24th Floor, B & C

Bank of China Building
Avenida Doutor Mario Soares
Macau

21 March 2011
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Income Statement

HZE2010F12H31H 1L F/Z for the year ended 31 December 2010
(LOBFPTME T (7 51R) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)

k=S

Note 2010 2009
FLEYA Interest income 4(a) 412,114 431,358
FEZH Interest expense 4(b) (82,656) (93,336)
FERE WA Net interest income 329,458 338,022
FAE A Net fees and commission income 4(c) 142,591 132,749
HEEERABR EMITA Net losses from financial instruments held

ZIEEE for trading (12,199) (2,017)
HAb A Other income 4(d) 22,957 17,867
EEWA Operating income 482,807 486,621
BEL W Operating expenses 4(e) (209,883) (224,072)
HBRERREEARESE Operating profit before impairment

A& ZEE R losses and allowances charged on

loans and advances 272,924 262,549
B2 RER R R EERE Impairment losses and allowances released/

(12#) (charged) on loans and advances 4(f) 2,030 (13,699)
= Operating profit 274,954 248,850
LEEFFEEEEZF G Net gains on disposal of tangible fixed assets 155 1,710
RR%1 Al E Fl Profit before taxation 275,109 250,560
BE Taxation 5(a) (32,951) (27,335)
RRBE % F Profit after taxation 242,158 223,225
BRERMEHEER(EER] Effects of additional impairment

REEMERREEEZFE allowance for loans under Autoridade

Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) rules
Fr 5 18 0m A) Profit after taxation 242,158 223,225
RIESE BIRG (35, w2z (Increase)/decrease in impairment 18(b)

BRI B allowances under AMCM rules net of tax  (v) (20,141) 7,755

BELERKOFE 2B BER Profit after taxation under AMCM rules 222,017 230,980

F23EEF78E MR A RERN—20( o The notes on pages 23 to 78 form part of these financial statements.

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 19
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Balance Sheet

R2010412/318 As 31 December 2010
(LB TF Tl Zr) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
i
Note 2010 2009
&E ASSETS
e RIFHERTITEZE - RRERIT Cash and balances with banks, central banks

B H fth & ik i I8 and other financial institutions 8 1,366,446 995,930
TEHAFERITRIZE « RARIBITR Placements with banks, central banks and

E b & ghiE IR other financial institutions 9 - 41,396
BH5RE Trade bills 10 19,825 21,134
EERBREE Trading assets 11 15,800 15,256
BEERREMEREE Advances to customers and other accounts 12 13,913,837 11,317,909
TFREKER AR R Amounts due from ultimate holding 22(b)

EHIB A RIEA company and fellow subsidiaries (ii) 4,308,289 5,710,969
AEEETREE Available-for-sale financial assets 14 479,803 1,576,411
BREETEEE Tangible fixed assets 15 365,947 347,558
REE Total assets 20,469,947 20,026,563
BREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RITREIZE ~ RRIBITR Deposits and balances of banks, central

E b & g BT banks and other financial institutions 6,204 26,737
EEER TH - #ER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of

HAaFmR customers 17,373,682 17,594,676
EERZEE Trading liabilities 16 32,001 19,396
FERT AR IR Current tax payable 5(c) 30,269 29,359
BEHRIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 5(d) 28,163 20,538
HiaE Other liabilities 17 245,485 223,745
R REZER AR RENE AR Amounts due to ultimate holding company 22(b)

Z1ER and fellow subsidiaries (i) 1,151,588 539,652
waw Uoiel Sl 572 2N oS T
R Share capital 18(a) 120,000 120,000
(B Reserves 1,482,555 1,452,460
BREme® 00 Totalequity 1,602,555 1,572,460
HERRERRAE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20,469,947 20,026,563

RESSIEMIFER2011F3A218EE

S SRR
TR

S£23 B = FT78E  MIrtiBR A B mKR N —Bn
20  RFIKERAT - 20105 FH

2011

Fung Yuk Bun, Patrick
Lee Tak Lim

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March

The notes on pages 23 to 78 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2010F12H31H 1L F/Z for the year ended 31 December 2010
(A BPTEEF Tl FR) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
2010
#frt
BftRRE
Bank  REEERE
kA& -hikE EERE premises  Investment EERR BHEE RREREE
i3 Share General legal  revaluation  revaluation  Regulatory Unappropriated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
W0E1F1AER At 1 January 2010 120,000 184,200 120,000 65,789 8,900 92,161 981,410 1,572,460
BiEkE Dividends paid 7(b) - - - - - - (231,600 (231,600)
BHIRRIE EERRER Appropriaton to requlatory reserve
net of tax = = = = = 2,141 (20,141) =
BHBHBZAAMLERES Suplus on revaluation of bank premises
ngt of tax - - - 13,632 - - - 13,632
A HECHARLTRE Fair value changes of avalable-for-sale
25 financial assets = = = = 5905 - - 5,905
CEEL Transfer from resene = = = (491) = = 1 =
ERZEH Profitfor he year = = = = = = 24,158 12,158
WOENANBLES At 31 December 2010 120,000 184,200 120,000 78,930 14,805 112302 972318 1,602,555
2009
Ffmt
Bl
Bk RAERRER
kA —HhEE =1 premises Investment EEdE BHRE  RREasE
izt Share General Legal revaluation revaluation Regulatory  Unappropriated Total
Note capial resene fesene fesene resene fesene profit equity
W09E1A1B LR At 1 January 2009 120,000 184,200 120,000 - (255) 99,916 870,430 1,394,291
ERRE Dividends paid 7(b) - - - - - - (120,000) (120,000)
BRRE EERRER Appropriation to requlatory resene
et of tax - - - - - (7,755) 7,755 -
BARREZRAMLEERSE  Supluson revaluation of bank premises
net of tax - - - 65,789 - - = 65,789
A EECHARATRE Fair value changes of avalable-or-sale
25 financial asets = = = = 9,15 = = 915
Emzi) Profit or the year = = = = = = M35 WS
00951231058 At 31 December 2009 120,000 184,200 120,000 65,789 8,900 92,161 981,410 1,572,460

F23EEFT8A ZMEBA A EHRERN—B -

The notes on pages 23 to 78 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

HZE2010F12H31H 1L F/Z for the year ended 31 December 2010
(A AFTHEF T 5T ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
=S
Note 2010 2009
REETEMEEZRERE Cash flows generated from operating
- acivites 21(a) 634,645 1,268,629
RETE Investing activities
BAGLETEEE Purchase of tangible fixed assets (19,004) (2,388)
BARHHESREE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (24,206) (80,324)
HERLBEEERE Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets 356 6,031
BEIAMEHESRMEE Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale
debt securities 65,024 40,198
2 YRR B Dividends received 4(d) 1,206 643
EREZEMEL, (EA) Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
O RALFHE activites 23,376 (35,840)
ALEEE Financing activities
TR E Dividends paid 7(b) (231,600) (120,000)
EREEBMA L 2REFHE  Netcash usedin financing activities (231,600) (120,000)
ReRZERBESEHIEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 426,421 1,112,789
ReNZERBESEEAMIA1B4S Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 5,366,924 4,254,135
REeRZERBEELER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
W12 8318 &tk 21(b) 5,793,345 5,366,924
REREEETEEHHESHREGIE . Cash flows from operating activities include:
2B Interest received 410,335 437,892
[EENEES Interest paid 66,001 100,868

F23EEF78E MR A RERN—20( o The notes on pages 23 to 78 form part of these financial statements.
22  BFIKTRIT - 2010FF3H
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

1 Status of the Bank

Banco Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank”) was incorporated in Macau on

place of business at 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro, Macau.

2 FESFEX 2 Principal accounting policies

(a) HE¥ESIEH
RAPBHRER 2 ME - RRERME AT
B2 & B i ZARHIEF32/93MIES
NORPIEA T RS R K o

(a) Statement of compliance

Administrative Region (“Macau SAR").

ZM‘T?%T%%WE’\]E;: = u-‘—ﬂz ﬁﬁﬁljﬁD—F °

Bank is set out below.

(b) BImTFERER (b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

R F TR ORI F LB YR -
fﬁ*”ﬂiﬁﬁ%#&i‘%muﬁfﬁﬁkzﬁﬁu HE

W WDEARBEEERR  BEUA
TEEFAB=LAHEEZSHMTA
RUATFEEZEA @ ESTBURMRER

RERRPIM MG ERRBI B IREK
EIEEAEHE - At RBRIEMTE
BEREW  EEMAE  WARIHZ
EHREHE - ARG RERVIRBER
MAEMAE  REBEZEREEM
B3 - B BB LE R BEAE HL tb 77 T A
ENEENBENREE - BERAERA
REEt AR A RMAR o

2 September 1963. The Bank is engaged in commercial banking and
related financial services. The Bank has its registered office and principal

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements as set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M and the
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) of the Macau Special

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the

The financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas, rounded to
the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale are stated at their fair
MizE2(c) ° value as explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2(c).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not

readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

BRfG RBRATERE - HEFTR
FEZIERTH  StAFOETERZ
EFTERAFER. EXﬁDaZf AR ERGR
RREEH - AIRMERT R R R & 7T

TR o revision affects both current and future periods.

EREEEERMARMMEREEAR
PERE AR BERRBEERTENH
i - ARAEEARERZNEEZRR -
BRI ©

of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. * Annual Report 2010

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

Judgements made by management in the application of MFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources

23
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(c) Financial instruments

(0]

Initial recognition

The Bank classifies its financial instruments into different categories
at inception, depending on the purpose for which the assets were
acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The categories are: fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of the financial
liability. Transaction costs on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately.

The Bank recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised using trade date accounting. Other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recorded.

(ii) Classification

— Fair value through profit or loss
This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, but
exclude those investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Bank has the option to designate financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
when:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract;

— or the separation of the embedded derivatives from
the financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this category
are carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value are
included in the income statement in the period in which
they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or net payment and the
carrying value is included in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market, other than (1) those that the Bank intends
to sell immediately or in the near term, which will be
classified as held for trading; (2) those that the Bank, upon
initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit
or loss or as available-for-sale; or (3) those where the Bank
may not recover substantially all of its initial investment,
other than because of credit deterioration, which will be
classified as available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly
comprise loans and advances to customers and bank, and
placements with banks, central banks and other financial
institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(h)).
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified in any of the other two categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value are recognised directly in the revaluation reserve,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary items such as debt securities which
are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably, and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
securities are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(h)).

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains
or losses on disposal include the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are released
from the revaluation reserve.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Fair value measurement principles
The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction
for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are priced at
current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at current
asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest trade price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments, or
if the market for it is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques that provide a reliable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Fair value measurement principles (continued)

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management'’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the balance
sheet date applicable for an instrument with similar terms and
conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Bank uses the weighted average method to determine
realised gains or losses to be recognised in profit or loss on
derecognition.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.
The embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative when (1) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the host contract; and (2) the hybrid (combined)
instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with note (ii) above.

(d) Hedging
The Bank has no financial instruments which qualify for hedge
accounting.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

@)

(ii)

Bank premises that are held for the Bank’s administrative use
are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
their fair values at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity by professional qualified valuers, or at
directors’ valuation by reference to open market value, to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the balance
sheet date. Changes arising on the revaluation are generally
dealt with in reserves. The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited
to the income statement to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously
been charged to the income statement.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained profits and is not reclassified to the income statement.

Bank premises that are not held for the Bank’s administrative
use and other tangible fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any (note 2(h)).

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of tangible fixed
assets that has already been recognised is added to the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of
performance of the existing asset, will flow to the enterprise.
All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of tangible fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in the income statement on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Freehold land and buildings
—Land
— Buildings

Leasehold land and buildings

Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Not depreciated
50 years
25 to 50 years

3 to 10 years
5 years
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Operating lease

Where the Bank has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to income statement
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to the income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Bank may take
repossession of the collateral assets through court proceedings or
voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. In accordance
with the Bank’s accounting policy set out in note 2(h), impairment
allowances for impaired loans and advances are maintained after
taking into account the net realisable value of the repossessed
assets. Repossessed assets continue to be treated as securities for
loans and advance until the Bank acquires legal title of the assets
through public auction. In that case, the assets are recorded at the
lower of their carrying amount of the related loans and advances
and fair value less costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not
depreciated or amortised. The Bank does not hold any repossessed
assets for its own use.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Bank
about one or more of the following loss events which has an impact
on the future cash flows on the assets that can be estimated reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial assets because
of financial difficulties; and
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of loans
and receivables, which are measured at amortised cost, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Bank is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that borrower
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognised
in the income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables with
a short duration are not discounted if the effect of discounting
is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances, and collective
impairment allowances.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Loans and receivables (continued)
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The individual impairment allowance is based upon management'’s
best estimate of the present value of the cash flows which are
expected to be received discounted at the original effective
interest rate. In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgements about the borrower’s financial situation and the net
realisable value of any underlying collateral or guarantees in favour
of the Bank. Each impaired asset is assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations, and economic factors. In order to estimate the
required allowance, the Bank makes assumptions both to define
the way the Bank models inherent losses and to determine the
required input parameters, based on historical experience and
current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Bank makes
depends on how well the Bank can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily involves
judgement, the Bank believes that the impairment allowances
on advances to customers are reasonable and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to the income
statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
loans and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Bank has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or overdue.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
the income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in the income statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity securities and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that tangible
fixed assets (other than properties carried at revalued amount)
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

0]

@

(k)

(iii) Other assets (continued)
— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro-rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the income statement in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks,
central banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid inter-bank placements and investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost to the
Bank of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plan
are recognised as expenses in the income statement as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
prior years.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(k) Income tax (continued)

]

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available, against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available. Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, the Bank has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually applies to income tax
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received)
is initially recognised as deferred income within other liabilities.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(0]

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2(l)
(ii) if and when (1) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Bank under the guarantee, and (2)
the amount of that claim on the Bank is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in other liabilities in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation,
complaint or legal claim, arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will
flow to the Bank and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
designated reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement
as follows:

(i)

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (continued)

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

Interest income (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call
and similar options) but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to residential
mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the income
statement over their expected life.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest income
based on the original terms of the financial assets is
discontinued, but any increase in the present value of impaired
financial assets due to the passage of time is reported as interest
income.

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income is recognised in the income
statement when the corresponding service is provided, except
where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a continuing
service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest in
nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the costs or risk is incurred or
accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Bank
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Macau Patacas at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Macau Patacas at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Macau
Patacas using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in net
realised and unrealised gains/losses on trading financial instruments
or financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are
presented as gains/losses arising from dealing in foreign currencies in
the income statement. Differences arising on translation of available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in reserve.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Bank if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Bank or exercise significant
influence over the Bank in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Bank;

(i) the Bank and the party are subject to common control;

(iii)

the party is an associated company of the Bank;
(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Bank or the Bank's parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the

benefit of employees of the Bank or of any entity that is a

related party of the Bank.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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3 Accounting estimates and judgements
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to fair values of financial instruments. Other key sources
of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment losses
— Loans and advances
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4 EZEHR
(a) AEUWA

38

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Bank makes judgements as to whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is impaired, i.e.
whether there is a decrease in estimated future cash flows. Objective
evidence for impairment is described in accounting policy note2(h).
If management has determined, based on their judgement, that
objective evidence for impairment exists, expected future cash flows
are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those of the Bank. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable data.
Management reviews the methodology and assumptions used in
estimating future cash flows regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale equity securities

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline
in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a reasonable time
period is judgmental by nature, so profit and loss could be affected
by differences in this judgement.

4 Operating profit

(a) Interest income

2010 2009
FIEWAIRE : Interest income arising from:
—FEUNAFEBEFAEBRZ — financial assets not measured at fair value
ERIEE through profit or loss 412,114 431,088
—BERBEE — trading assets - 270
412,114 431,358
Hep of which:
— EiiRE 2 FEWA — interest income from listed investments 3,980 4,265
— I ETIRE ZFEWA — interest income from unlisted investments 3,710 8,558
—RESREEZHSWA — interest income from impaired
financial assets 696 -

BPIKZERIT » 20105 F 3R



4 EERNe

(b)

(9]

(d)

4 Operating profit (continued)

FESZH (b) Interest expense
2010 2009
MEXHIRE : Interest expense arising from:
—FEUNAFEEBEFAERZ — financial liabilities not measured at
EEAE fair value through profit or loss 66,822 92,323
—BEEAREE — trading liabilities 15,834 1,013
82,656 93,336
He of which:
—BFER T8 #EER — interest expense on current, fixed, savings
EMFsA B and other deposits of customers 61,159 69,246
—iRITAZE - RRRITR — interest expense on deposits and balances
ol T e of banks, central banks and other
R B financial institutions 5,663 23,077
REERFESWAFE (c) Net fees and commission income
2010 2009
7% E KBS KA Fees and commission income
— BT ERS — Deposit related business 12,847 10,215
—BRERES — Loan related business 17,216 16,825
—BRBZEB — Trade finance business 10,076 10,178
—ERAERAEER — Credit cards 27,353 25,057
—BREEERGE — Stock-broking fees 44,140 47,908
—EEERGE — Wealth management fees 4,312 3,527
—HnKERAE — Other agency commissions 15,712 12,115
—HAh — Others 11,773 7,715
B RIS E RAe SN Less: Fees and commission expense (838) (791)
142,591 132,749

A ERPIRZIRBERBEBAFEE
BREFFIEEEREMIFEENRF

BEFSABRSEZeMIA -

through profit and loss.

The above fees and commission were generated from financial
instruments that are not held for trading nor designated at fair value

Hiblg A (d) Other income

2010 2009
A& B U A Dividend income 1,206 643

HNE B B fa= Gains arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 19,107 16,546
Hh Others 2,644 678
22,957 17,867
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4 EEHER ) 4 Operating profit (continued)
(e) Bxx%H (e) Operating expenses
2010 2009
EERA Staff costs
Fre REMIESKA Salaries and other staff costs 113,313 103,652
RONERIAK R Retirement benefit costs 7,967 7,969
121,280 111,621
NERIEITE 2T KRB T Premises and equipment expense,
excluding depreciation 13,328 12,407
e (FeaE15) Depreciation (note 15) 15,905 16,505
LRSS A Operating lease charges 3,883 3,813
Z SR 2 A Auditors’ remuneration 434 379
Hth Others 55,053 79,347
209,883 224,072
() EXREBRAREEFRR (EHR) (f) Impairment losses and allowances released/(charged) on loans
and advances
2010 2009
VI RER Individually assessed
— B8, (J2H) — released/(charged) 837 (10,353)
BEREER Collectively assessed
— Bl (F2HR) — released/(charged) 1,193 (3,346)
BEEEFREERF Net released/(charged) of impairment losses
B4 (BRE)(FizE13) and allowances for loans
and advances (note 13) 2,030 (13,699)
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(a) WEFERAZBIAR :

5 Taxation

(a) Taxation in the income statement represents:

2010 2009
AEAFIE - BT B R Current tax — Provision for Macau
BEE Complementary Tax
REEAM Provision for the year 30,269 29,359
T FFELEEBTE Over-provision in respect of prior years (64) (967)
30,205 28,392
EEBE Deferred taxation
TRUEEEEER Origination and reversal of temporary
#4[0] differences 2,746 (1,057)
32,951 27,335

2010F EIRPIFT 1S FE FE B BB T IR %
FREMERD G NRRITHE12%

(20094F : 12%)st&

ended 31 December 2010.

The provision for Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12%
(2009: 12%) of the Bank’s estimated assessable profits for the year

(b) B RGBSRz &R (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
iR : applicable tax rate:
2010 2009
% %
B A0 BT 4 Al Profit before tax 275,109 100.00 250,560 100.00
sz 0piny Notional tax on profit
ZEFIE before taxation 33,013 12.00 30,067 12.00
AR 2 Tax effect of non-deductible
MIBRE expenses 2 0.00 30 0.01
FFEFELEEBF Over-provision in prior years (64) (0.02) (967) (0.39)
Hity Other - - (1,795) (0.72)
ERHIES Actual tax expense 32,951 11.98 27,335 10.91
() EEEEBRAZTHHRES () Current tax payable in the balance sheet represents:
2010 2009
REEBRPIAEHR Provision for Macau Complementary Tax
B for the year 30,269 29,359
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5 #HE#) 5 Taxation (continued)
(d) EEREBZELEHEEE (&) : (d) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
FRANREEBBRRNERZELERIEE The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
B/ (BB ZEK M REZEHIT ¢ balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:

B

B 2ERK

BEA# 2 & Bl 38 0z
HEZ B REEE
$@MEE Individual Additional

Revaluation impairment impairment 4
of available allowances allowances SR1TITHE
for-sale debt  for loans under Revaluation
financial and AMCM of bank &5
assets advances rules premises Total
EER A Deferred tax arising
KA : from:
201041 A1 &S At 1 January 2010 (1,213) 2,214 (12,568) (8,971) (20,538)
a2k AIIBR Charged to income
statement - - (2,746) - (2,746)
T R Charged to reserves (806) (2,214) = (1,859) (4,879)
2010512 A31H#%# At 31 December 2010 (2,019) - (15,314) (10,830) (28,163)
200941 A1 B &8 At 1 January 2009 35 2,214 (13,625) - (11,376)
gk AHERE Credited to income
statement - - 1,057 - 1,057
R AR Charged to reserves (1,248) - = (8,971) (10,219)
2009412 A31H#%# At 31 December 2009 (1,213) 2,214 (12,568) (8,971) (20,538)
B Eatsh - RITREEBBERBRZAA Apart from the above, the Bank does not have any significant
b B RIEEFR IR AR VERR B 24 o unprovided deferred taxation arising for the year or as at the balance
sheet date.
6 EEME 6 Directors’ emoluments
2010 2009
BEES Fees 190 190
H i< Other emoluments 4,193 2,759
4,383 2,949
ANITHAPHFEEENER N TUREEREN - m Certain directors of the Bank received remuneration from group
BN SR A R AT o companies but no allocation has been made to the Bank.
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(@) "FERE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
2010 2009
EHEEBBEERIK No final dividend (2009: MOP93) per
REARR B8 B BIARAR S ordinary share proposed after
(20094 : JEF9¥&937T) the balance sheet date = 111,600
EHEERERIR 2 RARE - WARRE The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not
HHERREME - been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
(b) RERMERKEZEFERERE (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year, approved and
paid during the year
2010 2009
REABLE RIKE 2 KF R Final dividend in respect of the previous
& BT AR 93T year, approved and paid during the year
(20094 : JRFI¥EA87T) of MOP93 (2009: MOP48) per
ordinary share 111,600 57,600
RERAE RIRE 2 EFRRIRE Special dividend in respect of previous year,
R EBARPIEE1007T approved and paid during the year of
(2009%F : JRFI¥EE527T) MOP100 (2009: MOP52) per
ordinary share 120,000 62,400
231,600 120,000

8 HMENTEHIETEZE -+ P54t 8 Cash and balances with banks, central banks

TREMSRMEERIE and other financial institutions
2010 2009
MR Cash balances 407,057 279,103
FRFRRIBITRIA Balances with central banks 355,269 309,563
T RERTTRIZERIA Balances with banks 604,120 407,264
1,366,446 995,930
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9 EHIFEHEITEZE vR$EST 9 Placements with banks, central banks and

R H A SRR IE other financial institutions
2010 2009
TE BATF R 1T Rl 25008 Placements with banks = 41,396
10E5FE 10 Trade bills
2010 2009
BHER Trade bills 19,825 21,134
1E Rl (E 224 Individual impairment allowances - =
BEREES Collective impairment allowances = =
19,825 21,134
1M EERAREE 11 Trading assets
EERAREEFERTESRIAZIEAY Trading assets represent positive fair values of derivative financial
BEIBEEKEERAAR S 2 &R RER instruments and include balances with the ultimate holding company
F9#51,962,0007T (20094 : JBFI#4 3,696,000 amounting to MOP1,962,000 (2009: MOP3,696,000).
JT) °
12 EFER KR HMRIE 12 Advances to customers and other accounts
(a) EFERRHEMREBEHRBEERS (a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
impairment allowances
2010 2009
EEER4AEE Gross advances to customers 13,275,519 10,834,611
BEE R ER R EER Individual impairment allowances for
(BI7E13) impaired loans and advances (note 13) (1,332) (887)
B EBRHEER Collective impairment allowances for
(FF5E13) loans and advances (note 13) (12,456) (13,649)
13,261,731 10,820,075
HRITRIZEZER Advances to bank 476,940 315,517
EARPBE Customer liability under acceptances 82,538 90,778
FEETFIE Accrued interest 20,532 18,754
HhARIE Other accounts 72,096 72,785
13,913,837 11,317,909
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12 Advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(b)

REERITEHARRERZEER A
BH R RARBREREER -

Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

The information concerning advances to customers by industry
sectors is prepared by classifying the advances according to the
usage of the advances and is stated gross of any impairment

allowances.
2010 2009
EF BE =R RIE
EXAE EFEX Bz BEFEEX
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired

advances to advances to advancesto  advances to

customers  customers customers customers
ERMAERAZER Advances for use in Macau
T BELER Industrial, commercial and
financial
MR Property development 408,052 20,678 630,875 20,678
MEIRE Property investment 2,511,272 - 2,689,908 =
B TS Financial concerns 192 - 432 _
HBETESR Wholesale and retail trade 336,124 352 178,234 351
BlER Manufacturing 152,428 565 227,938 638
Eip R R Transport and transport
equipment 756,031 - 335,211 -
BREBBZER Share financing 47,187 - 28,818 -
Hih Others 1,281,662 31 1,075,306 31
A Individuals
BEEEYEZ Advances for the purchase of
B% residential properties 6,136,630 3,344 4,259,847 3,164
ERAEER Credit card advances 134,322 250 123,054 733
Hih Others 1,242,933 1,453 1,071,962 712
13,006,833 26,673 10,621,585 26,307
BESmE Trade finance 261,902 - 206,008 -
TEBFILUIMERR 2 Advances for use outside
B Macau 6,784 - 7,018 -
13,275,519 26,673 10,834,611 26,307
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(9]

(d)

REZEFER
BEZEFEFAE  HERnmER
ERREEEDHFT

12 Advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(d)

Impaired advances to customers

The gross impaired advances to customers, market value of collateral
held with respect of such advances and individual impairment
allowances are as follows:

2010 2009
BEZEFERERE Gross impaired advances to customers 26,673 26,307
BERFERBREEEFER Gross impaired advances to customers
BE2BEDL as a percentage of total advances
to customers 0.20% 0.24%
BERPER IR mTE Market value of collateral held with respect
to impaired advances to customers 25,160 25,138
ERREZEE Individual impairment allowances 1,332 887

BEZEFERZZERFE - LT
BELBRER 2 EBRERE - Bat Rk
% B SRR R AT U [ SRR 2 O IR (B 1R B
ERIFH 2 MEER > MZERREE
BREVE -

M 2010412 A 31 B & 20094 12 A 31
B RTETFRITRAZEZ KB © WE
WA ZIRITRIZEE R « IR R R
(ER

W EEE

REZE2010F12A31B IEFER » &fT
BEERERRZEFEROT

E3:1

EEMREEYF

Nature

(d)

Residential and commercial properties

Impaired advances to customers are individually assessed loans with
objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis. Individually
assessed impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the net present value of future recoverable amounts in
respect of such loans and advances, and the collateral held mainly
comprised properties.

There are no impaired advances to bank nor individual impairment
allowances made on advances to bank as at 31 December 2010 and
31 December 2009.

Repossessed assets
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Bank has taken
possession of collateral it holds as security as follows:

2010 2009

5,768 1,250
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AZ T (20094 « 22P9%51,028,0007T) °

13 EFERZBEERS

12 Advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(d) Repossessed assets (continued)
The amount represents the market value of the repossessed assets.

Repossessed assets obtained are intended to be realised in an orderly
fashion to repay the impaired advances to customers and are not
held for the own use of the Bank.

At 31 December 2010, repossessed assets obtained as securities
for impaired advances to customers totalled MOPNil (2009:
MOP1,028,000) for the Bank.

13 Impairment allowances on loans and advances
to customers

2010
& 51 2 &5t
Individual Collective Total
1A B &% At 1 January 887 13,649 14,536
g Additions 831 - 831
(o] 2% Releases (1,668) (1,193) (2,861)
(o] B s 3RV RE (BT 5E4(F)) Net credit to income statement
(note 4(f)) (837) (1,193) (2,030)
W Bl FF B Mk 2 B Recoveries of advances written off
in prior years 1,627 = 1,627
F Nk Amounts written off (345) - (345)
12 A31 B & (MEE12() At 31 December (note 12(a)) 1,332 12,456 13,788
2009
(B gl a5
Individual Collective Total
1B1H &5 At 1 January 31,055 10,303 41,358
i Additions 16,113 3,346 19,459
o1 5% Releases (5,760) = (5,760)
2 EU s 75 % 28 (B aE4(f) Net charge to income statement
(note 4(f)) 10,353 3,346 13,699
W Bl FF B Mk 2 B Recoveries of advances written off
in prior years 2,865 = 2,865
FAMIBR Amounts written off (43,386) = (43,386)
12 A31 A& (MIFE12(a)) At 31 December (note 12(a)) 887 13,649 14,536
BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 47



MEH R

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2010F12H31H 1L F/Z for the year ended 31 December 2010
(LBPTEET Tz dor - Sathrsh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)
14 HEEESREE 14 Available-for-sale financial assets
2010 2009
BEBEES Debt securities
BAEREIT LM (BFES)  Issued by sovereigns —
unlisted (Treasury bills) 301,985 1,355,265
BEET— LW Issued by corporates — listed 24,363 15,693
NEREEIT LT Issued by public sector
entities — unlisted 43,202 41,382
NEWEET— W Issued by public sector
entities — listed - 25,072
SRMIETEIT -3 LT Issued by financial
institutions — unlisted - 23,544
SREMEEEIT - W Issued by financial
institutions — listed 53,998 64,481
777777777777777777777777777 423,548 1,525,457
BRE Equity securities
BEFET LT Issued by corporates — unlisted 46,451 39,245
PEEEIT— LT Issued by corporates — listed 9,804 11,709
e 56,255 | 50,954
479,803 1,576,411
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15 BB EEE 15 Tangible fixed assets

2010
& &1
HiERER
Furniture,
fixtures,
fR1T1THL  equipment
Bank  and motor &&t
premises vehicles Total
A EE ¢ At cost or valuation:
20104F1 A1 B &% At 1 January 2010 345,049 122,169 467,218
INE Additions 4,664 14,340 19,004
e Disposals - (5,264) (5,264)
EH AR Surplus on revaluation 15,491 - 15,491
B HIRTTITIEZ 25T Elimination of accumulated depreciation
E on revalued bank premises (1,079) - (1,079)
20104F12 A31 B #&584 At 31 December 2010 364,125 131,245 495,370
F2EHITE - Accumulated depreciation:
201041 A1 B #5584 At 1 January 2010 23,739 95,921 119,660
NEEHRE(HE4e)) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 3,744 12,161 15,905
HHE B Written back on disposals - (5,063) (5,063)
HIHEHIRTITITHE 2 25T Elimination of accumulated depreciation
e on revalued bank premises (1,079) - (1,079)
2010412431848k At31December20t0 26,404 103,019 - 129,423
BREVEE : Net book value:
2010512 A31H &% At 31 December 2010 337,721 28,226 365,947
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15 BREEERE#) 15 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
2009
R~ e -
B s &R
Furniture,
fixtures,
SRITITIE equipment
Bank and motor A5
premises vehicles Total
A HE ! At cost or valuation:
200941 B 1B &84 At 1 January 2009 279,432 126,895 406,327
NE Additions 45 2,343 2,388
HeE Disposals (5,445) (7,069) (12,514)
E ey Surplus on revaluation 74,760 - 74,760
ISHEHBITITHEZ Elimination of accumulated depreciation
2EHTE on revalued bank premises (3,743) = (3,743)
20094F 12 A31 H &5 &% At 31 December 2009 345,049 122,169 467,218
Z2iHIE Accumulated depreciation:
200941 A1 B &84 At 1 January 2009 25,606 89,485 115,091
R R (Mt sE4(e)) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 3,104 13,401 16,505
o E R Written back on disposals (1,228) (6,965) (8,193)
HEIHEHIRITITIEZ Elimination of accumulated depreciation
2T E on revalued bank premises (3,743) - (3,743)
2009128318488 At31December2009 23,739 . 95921 ] 119,660
BRERE : Net book value:
2009 12 A31 H &4 At 31 December 2009 321,310 26,248 347,558

2010512 318 « #FHETHRAZERITIT
B AR E B EAITR — KR TG E
MEXBEHEARAR(EFHEIAESA
EMBENERSE)EM  ALEZRA
FMEER - RIS EGERBBRPIE
90,251,0007T (2009 4F : 8 F9# 74,760,000
JT ) B #0BR % A i 1E B P9 % 10,830,000 7T
(20094 : JBPFI#8,971,0007T ) B FESRTTITHE
EREEPRER o

Bank premises held for administrative use are revalued by an independent
firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, who
have among their staff, Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
and by directors’ valuation, on an open market value basis as at 31
December 2010. The revaluation surplus of MOP90,251,000 (2009:
MOP74,760,000) has been recognised in bank premises revaluation
reserve of the Bank, net of deferred tax of MOP10,830,000 (2009:
MOP8,971,000).
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15 BEEEE #)
BEARITZHRITITHE AR AR B E A
B HEEEMEMN2010FE12831BE A
JE 9 ¥ 247,470,000 7T ( 2009 F ¢ B P ¥
246,550,0007T) °

RITITH 2 BREDFEDITAA T

15 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
The carrying amount of the bank premises would have been
MOP247,470,000 (2009: MOP246,550,000) at 31 December 2010 had
they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The analysis of net book value of bank premises is as follows:

2010 2009
TR Z Kk A EEHE Freehold held in Macau 148,040 149,029
R 2L Leasehold held in Macau
—SEERFAA) (BREAEE105E LA TE) - Short-term leases (less than 10 years
unexpired) 189,681 172,281
337,721 321,310

EERREE
EEARABOERSRIERATRS 2T
EEmMT A8 AFEERPI32,001,000
J0(20094F : JBF9#19,261,0007T) °

16

16 Trading liabilities
Trading liabilities represent the negative fair values of derivative financial
instruments and include transactions balances with the ultimate holding
company amounting to MOP32,001,000 (2009: MOP19,261,000).

17 Hib & & 17 Other liabilities
2010 2009
B FI B Interest payable 43,415 29,594
A Ak Acceptances outstanding 82,538 90,778
i RENER Provisions for liabilities and
accrued charges 23,778 22,990
Hh Others 95,754 80,383
245,485 223,745
18 RA K e 18 Share capital and reserves
(@) BRA& (a) Share capital
2010 2009
SAEREWRERA : Authorised, issued and fully paid:
1,200,000% 2 & i@ Ik & A% 1,200,000 ordinary shares of
SRPIE1007T MOP100 each 120,000 120,000

EBEFEAGERDRTEE IR K
B TARRAITHNEZR LRER—F
TR E o i B BREREARITHORER
FEEDFHRFHAL

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meeting of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Bank's residual assets.
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18 RA K (2

52

(b) &

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

—RB1E
— R BRI B
RS ©

SEERE
EERERRM SRS ZAESE
%32/93M5RE S B 601K KR PR E
BN ZEA32{E Z FTERKL °

RESEMHE
REEHREEREATHREESRE
EZRADABEES MEZXE
AR I RS AE I EE2( AR
REEMBEELIFEERZFE -
WEA AR o

BATITHE

SRITITHL S (A TOIRBA 3R 2() AR
BOSRATTHE B A 2 24 - SRATTHE
EfERBLFRER RN - 1B
REEE o

EE e

RIEEE BABIF18/93% 2 R
TR N SR E R R
HRERF — T a2 RESEE
BE ME#SCZEEEEREER
BRUIINZEERFBER IS ESE
BE1% 2 —REAE - XIT2ER
B EIR R 2 BT R & 5T
RIER WA ZEFUREERD
NEERZ ZIRERE - A1T#5H
BHERGFREL—SHERZREE
SOKERERRBELEBZ =58 @ £
FERIBYEEBAESHE - X
FREEEHEITRAT

18 Share capital and reserves (continued)
(b) Reserves

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of
unappropriated profits and is available for distribution.

Legal reserve

Legal reserve was set up in accordance with Article 60 of Decree
Law No 32/93/M and Article 432 of the Macau Commercial
Code.

Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets until
the assets are derecognised and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies in note 2(c). It does not represent
realised profits and is not available for distribution.

Bank premises revaluation reserve

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of bank premises in note 2(e). It does not represent
realised profits and is not available for distribution.

Regulatory reserve

In accordance with Aviso n.°18/93-AMCM, financial institutions
are required to maintain a minimum level of specific provision
for a bad and doubtful loan at a percentage depending on
the overdue period of the loan, and a general provision at a
minimum of 1% (“the minimum level”) of the total balance of
performing loans and certain credit-related off balance sheet
exposure. The Bank recognises allowance for impairment losses
on loans and advances in accordance with the policy as set
out in note 2(h). In case where such impairment allowances
are lower than the minimum level as required by AMCM,
the Bank will transfer an amount, which is equal to the
difference between the allowance and the minimum level, after
adjustment for taxation impact, from its unappropriated profits
to the regulatory reserve. The amount of regulatory reserve
transfer for the year is as follows:

2010 2009
RIEEE BigpIZERigm, Increase/(decrease) in impairment allowances
CRD) 2 mERE under AMCM rules 22,887 (8,812)
R E R 2 BiIE Tax effect on the additional impairment
(B &ES5(d)) allowances (note 5(d)) (2,746) 1,057
20,141 (7,755)

]

HR2010FEEEERNAREEE
B EEBBRUNINZER LSS
SR2009F E 2 4258 - AIiIRES
E RIEHI B 2 B B E IR AR e 1
hn e

BMPIKFRIT « 2010FF3

The total balance of performing loans and certain credit-related
off balance sheet exposure in 2010 is higher than that of 2009,
therefore, the total impairment allowances required under
AMCM rules is increased.



19 EERBERUIIZEABREE

(a)

RREHRAREUERFE
IREHELAEEANENEERE
BRERBHZRNBRED ~ FHREMTF
R BEREZEEHEREMRS
UREEFBRIR  BEAURREHREE
MWERE  BREAE  ZEUEEFH
TAEMPRZER  KRBERREHREET
BEFmEk 2 EERBRER - TR
TR RIA AR BIRIM 2 P 2 Nk
g Rz BB e - MR AR ERR
AEBEMEERREHTERER - &
HNEBBEBALTRRRARZASRE -

SEEERRINESASIRBEBET
EBIRERTT(BAR)RE - TR ZRER
RN F0%Z=100% °

AT BBHRERER 2 HRER AR
ZRIECEHR

19 Off-balance sheet exposures
(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit

Contingent liabilities and commitments arises from forward asset
purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares and securities,
forward deposits placed, asset sales or other transactions with
recourse, as well as credit-related instruments which include,
letters of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit.
The risk involved in these credit instruments is essentially the same
as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should
the contract be fully drawn upon and the client defaults. Since a
significant portion of guarantees and commitments is expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total of the contract amounts
is not representative of future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
amounts ranged from 0% to 100% in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2010 2009

HEEEZRHER Direct credit substitutes 417,786 678,511
B 587 SR ET Trade-related contingencies 123,506 254,307
oA Other commitments:
— RS EARR TN 381 6 — With an original maturity of

not more than 1 year 490,575 382,953
—RAHABR1FIA £ — With an original maturity

over 1 year 417,041 358,196
— Al R EUH — Which are unconditionally

cancellable 1,203,542 1,002,034
=Er Total 2,652,450 2,676,001
EERRINESRE Credit risk weighted amount 484,075 494,183
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54

(b) EAEIE
R2010F12A31HABEEFEEEE
0 37 R 75 B 75 3R P e 4 2 & AR
EOT

19 Off-balance sheet exposures (continued)

(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
outstanding at 31December not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

2010 2009
ERERFEHNZHRE Expenditure authorised and
contracted for 1,361 4,794
EREREREFTEH A Expenditure authorised but not
contracted for - 4,532

() REBSHEE
72010512 A31H + BIR T AT EEHAI A
EHE - RREEENEERBREN
T

(c) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2010, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for properties and equipment
are payable as follows:

2010 2009
1R Within one year 2,313 2,329
1F A EB5F A After one year but within five years 1,224 2,563
3,537 4,892

RITURLEHERABEAZ B EMR
o MEFH RV 1224A8 - Em
BABENEEMERASZ - IAH
HATBEXAEE -

TTEE®mIT A
PTETERHBAY  AEERTEMER
H— A S EREAEERISEME -

KIOTRBONITELERGRARER S
ko HBRR AT AT ZEBERRES °
BTN RBREIER - NTZF BIRER S
RALTEBERREFEREERTZEEHRATE
ZHAR G MBEBZEHTAZEIHESR
HESh 2 @RI EMRL - NTILERIZER
et Bi T B RS R @ AR IR - £201045F
RANBAENMETEAABEZEERS
BORIREEABRAZIEBEAREEIR
[EERZBEIIIR -

BPIKZERIT » 20105 F 3R

The Bank leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to twenty-four months, with an option to renew the lease when
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

20 Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the value
of one or more underlying assets or indices.

The majority of the derivatives transactions were initiated in response
to customer demand and the remaining were economic hedges for
the Bank’s fixed-interest rate loans and debt securities. No significant
speculative positions are maintained by the Bank. The Bank entered into
interest rate swaps to hedge its investments in fixed-rate debt securities
so as to achieve a floating rate return. The swaps have approximately
the same maturity profile as the financial instruments being hedged.
The Bank has not elected to adopt hedge accounting in respect of these
swaps. The positive and negative fair values of the derivatives as at 31
December 2010 were reported within “trading assets” and “trading
liabilities” respectively on the balance sheet.
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(@) FTETAZEREH
TRBATINMETARNEERNRRS
BORERNSRIBANDON - WETA
ZERETHRENBEEARMARTERZR
28 U TRRERBER -

20 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)
(a) Notional amounts of derivatives

The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts
of derivatives of the Bank by relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining periods to settlement at the balance sheet date.
The notional amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of
outstanding transactions at the balance sheet date and do not
represent amounts at risk.

2010
10
{B5F R
1R Over 1year 5 E
Within  but within Over &5t
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
RHEERGH Forward exchange rate contracts 1,017,255 - - 1,017,255
R EIE 4 Interest rate swap contracts 834,300 1,259,690 87,550 2,181,540
1,851,555 1,259,690 87,550 3,198,795
2009
16 E
B5F R
14FA Over 1 year S5 E
Within but within Over =
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
REAPERE L Forward exchange rate contracts 1,009,341 = = 1,009,341
FEIEHIS 4 Interest rate swap contracts — 849,750 51,500 901,250
1,009,341 849,750 51,500 1,910,591

(b) FTETAZFERBRINESEE

(b) Credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives

2010 2009

fER A4 Exchange rate contracts 4,336 4,428
F=IEHI S 49 Interest rate swap contracts 6,506 5,666
10,842 10,094

T EEE RIS TR 2 R N
TR BB BIRITERIRIT(BEARE) 28
FENF0%ZE50% o

IEHEW ARG REEFRLH T E

The credit risk weighted amounts are computed in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance
and the risk weights used range from 0% to 50%.

These amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements.
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() BABNREEXTFHRELEZRER

21 Notes to the cash flow statement

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash flows

E¥RE generated from operating activities
2010 2009
=F 3753 Operating activities
R B A V2 Profit before taxation 275,109 250,560
AR Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 15,905 16,505
HERFEE & E 2 F il Net gains on disposal of tangible fixed
assets (155) (1,710)
NEEBES 2 mE Amortisation of premium of
debt securities 72 957
AR EMA Dividend income (1,206) (643)
SNEE SR ETIE (URER) Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 9,128 (1,836)
EFURERL R ER Impairment losses and allowances
(#m) R (released)/charged on loans and
advances (2,030) 13,699
B AR & @ 8% 58 Loans and advances written off net of
recoveries 1,282 40,521
298,105 318,053
RAHR A=A EZ Decrease/(increase) in placements with
SBITTFEREUR A,/ (350) banks with original maturity over three
months 41,396 (598)
BSZEERD Decrease in trade bills 1,309 6,073
BERSEECEM), B (Increase)/decrease in trading assets (544) 7,590
HEER R HEMERIE (Increase)/decrease in gross advances to
(#hn),/md customers and other accounts (2,595,179) 158,220
RABR A=A A EZ Decrease in amounts due from the
EHR SRR AR & ultimate holding company and fellow
HB AR 2 RIERD subsidiaries with original maturity over
three months 2,511,885 168,283
RITRIZE ~ PRIBITREA (Decrease)/increase in deposits and
SR 2 FR O ) balances of banks, central banks and
other financial institutions (20,533) 26,428
BEEER  THERBEETK (Decrease)/increase in current, fixed,
ORd>),/ 1 hn savings and other deposits of
customers (220,994) 1,947,676
BERAEBGEE N L) Increase/(decrease) in trading liabilities 12,605 (6,049)
HiaEEm  Ofd) Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 21,740 (25,014)
SRR AT REWMEB AT ZFRIE  Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
n/Cmd) ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 611,936 (1,295,766)
HEXTHELECRSTE Net cash generated from the
operations 661,726 1,304,896
BRI SRR Macau Complementary Tax paid (27,081) (36,267)
FHEXTHELEZHSFE Cash flows generated from operating
activities 634,645 1,268,629
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(b) RERERFLIRE 2D

21 Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)
(b) Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

2010 2009
e RFRIRITRIZE - Cash and balances with banks, central
FRRERTT R ELAD banks and other financial institutions
RS IR 1,366,446 995,930
SRR AR & Amounts due from ultimate holding
H T8 RFFRIE company and fellow subsidiaries
— R REFRIEITRZE — Cash and balances with banks,
FRRERTT M ELAD central banks and other financial
© RIS FRIE institutions 36,442 24,423
—RAHR A =@ AR — Placements with banks, central banks
TERFRERITRIZE - and other financial institutions
FR R ERTT M ELA with original maturity within three
5 B RUOR months 4,088,472 2,991,286
AHEZEmEE Available-for-sale financial assets
— BT ES — Treasury bills 301,985 1,355,285
5,793,345 5,366,924

2 ERBEALIRS

() EETHAEZHE

TETHRAEZME - BENZ6MRE

FEFTERITE SRR - WIAT ¢

22 Material related party transactions
(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts

paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in note 6, is as follows:

2010 2009

EHE B EA Short-term employee benefits 9,929 8,169
BEER 2R A Post-employment benefits 892 845
10,821 9,014
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2 ERBEATRZ
(b) BRAERATREMBATZRS

REEA @ RTEFEZER AR - BB
KFH|RITREMBRAZR S - 5 —
REFBXEBRARGHET - FRZK
X BERBRACIISRBZEER
BRI TIIT

22 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries
During the year, transactions with the Bank’s ultimate holding
company, Wing Hang Bank, Limited and fellow subsidiaries were
entered into by the Bank in the ordinary course of business and on
normal commercial terms. The income and expense for the year, on-
and off-balance sheet outstandings at the balance sheet date and
corresponding average balances for the year are set out below:

(i) WARZH (i) Income and expense
2010 2009
FBUA Interest income 60,290 86,538
FEZH Interest expenses (25,272) (28,065)
BRARASSE Fees and commission expense (723) (697)
H ez Other income 927 927
HIEEEMGEZEMI B #EE  Netloss from financial instruments
held for trading (12,199) (2,017)
=B E R Operating expenses (14,441) (15,214)
(i) EEEBERAZER (i) On-balance sheet outstandings
BE Assets
HERER Fikkth
Ending balance Average balance
2010 2009 2010 2009
R & RIFERTT Cash and balances with
R PRIFITREMSE banks, central banks
RS SRIE and other financial
institutions 36,442 24,423 31,956 34,845
TEHATF SR T Placements with banks,
F2E - PRIRTT central banks and
R E & RIS IR other financial
institutions 4,154,201 5,565,452 4,850,555 6,202,424
BEEM R HA Advances to customers
L= and other accounts 117,646 121,094 120,372 134,747

4,308,289 5,710,969 5,002,883 6,372,016
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(b) BRZERATAREMBAT XS ()

22 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Transactions with ultimate holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) On-balance sheet outstandings (continued)

(i) EEEERAZERE)
=L Liabilities
EHEHBER i EL ek
Ending balance Average balance
2010 2009 2010 2009
RITRAIZE - R Deposits and balances of
ERIT R EAM banks, central banks,
DR ZFR and other financial
institutions 1,147,106 537,934 1,143,710 1,399,624
BEAEXR - EH - #E Current, fixed, savings
REMFR and other deposits of
customers 227 298 290 298
HiBE Other liabilities 4,255 1,420 5,041 10,345
1,151,588 539,652 1,149,041 1,410,267
(iii) EEAERIIZEE (iii) Off-balance sheet outstanding
HEE R T Eek
Ending balance Average balance
2010 2009 2010 2009
BREE Contract amounts
BEEEEKRER Direct credit substitutes 119,108 113,918 117,543 113,918
(iv) fTESR T B2 &8 (iv) Derivative financial instruments outstanding
EHEHBZ&R PG EE ek
Ending balance Average balance
2010 2009 2010 2009
= o] Notional amounts
= HIE RS 4 Forward exchange rate
contracts 1,003,199 1,000,000 814,690 1,003,503
FEmRHEH Interest rate swap
contracts 2,027,040 746,750 1,763,961 440,325
59
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22 Material related party transactions (continued)

23

60

() SRBEER

R12A31 B 2 EFR4aE

(c) Loans to officers

2010 2009

Aggregate amount of relevant loans
outstanding at 31 December - -

The maximum aggregate amount of
relevant loans outstanding during
the year - -

d) A BERETEAETEBEALZ
FRIAVE H R (E 18 K 2245 (20094
&) o

B mbaEE

RITOHIERRK - B RRE - NEEARTT
FrASOARBERR - NTABZHERER
EERGREREMES  AEH - 58
ERERZEHEERR  RBESRRKETS
Rk - ZERBEERRR - 27 REEL
EEeRREECRESRE Y hERER
EEEHMZZESNREREEREERE
BEEZBEE  (FEHRE - AEBZRBESE
TEMEZLBIRE @ AERZFRER
T2 FrREISPAEAHE -

AHFENNHEATE L S BRAR - RREE
REERMBR  BERMEF  UREAER
EER -

(a) FEERER

EERRBRRERR ZHF R ETHE
2 AIREATTHER  BH5ME - B
B TETARHMER E=2ER
ERATZ AEBTERNREZES
LT EERBER -

IIF

FERREESEINEMER  BEE
EERRNERRETREREENG
R#tEHNEER - AITNEERRFIE T
BETEENER  EEMZEERNE
F - BERDBRGIBRENEBER - ER
BRI REEBEHAESI R
RIFT IR 2% A0 & R RISR B E AR
EERRENBE

BPIKZERIT » 20105 F 3R

(d) During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been made
in respect of the above advances to related parties (2009: Nil).

23 Financial risk management

The Bank has established policies, procedures and limits to manage
various types of risk that the Bank is exposed to. Risk management
processes and management information systems are in place to identify,
measure, monitor and control credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
The risk management policies, procedures and limits are approved by
the Board of Directors or its designated committee, and are monitored
and reviewed regularly by the relevant risk management committees,
such as the Credit Committee and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALMCO"). Internal auditors perform regular audits and
independent checking to ensure compliance with the policies and
procedures.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the
above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risks, and the Bank’s management of capital.

(a) Credit risk management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a
transaction may default. It arises from the lending, trade finance,
treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the Bank. The
Board of Directors has delegated the Bank’s credit risk management
to the Credit Committee, which is chaired by the Bank’s General
Manager.

The credit risk management function is independent of the business
units. It oversees the implementation of credit policies and ensures
the quality of credit evaluation and approval. Credit approval is
conducted in accordance with the Bank'’s credit policy, which defines
the credit extension criteria, the credit approval and monitoring
processes, the loan classification system and impairment policy. The
credit policy also takes into account the guidelines issued by the
AMCM and accounting standards issued by Macau SAR with respect
to large exposures and impairment requirements.



23 M EMERE @) 23 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) EERMEEE) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
FERBERESIEEHRAITHERTF Guidelines to manage credit risk have been laid down in the Bank’s
fit  WKEREZELEHRE &t Loaning Manual, which is regularly reviewed and approved by the
% BERFMABESEERRERE Credit Committee. The Loaning Manual covers the delegated lending
BIEEE . EEEERE  BEROBE% authorities, credit extension criteria, credit monitoring process, loan
&t FEBWERERE - classification system, credit recovery and impairment policy.

(i) LEEERR (i) Corporate credit risk
CECE—RENEERBEMEE The corporate lending is generally made to customers with
SEFRRM - BRIEL BIETIHIN strong financial background. In addition to market targeting,
EEEERBOFTEF LAAEER the principal means of managing credit risk is the credit
EBEE o NTEZHBUR MER approval process. The Bank has policies and procedures to
U EHERSEFR T FHEE evaluate the potential credit risk of a particular counterparty
BEERR  URAEMZBERZS or transaction and to approve the transaction. For corporate
HE - BEEXFME + ATTE clients, the Bank has a detailed risk grading system that is
F—EBARMAERZHFHEH applied to each counterparty on a regular basis. The Bank also
MR EEBZRELS - X1THE has limits for exposure to individual industries and for borrowers
A RITT 2 R TR E A TS = and groups of borrowers, regardless of whether the exposure
AEERERRERE - TwEkE is in the form of loans or non-funded exposures. The Bank also
EXRERSIEE SRR o AN1TIE has a review process to ensure the proper level of review and
BEREE  BREBERANR approval depending on the size of the facility and risk grading
BEAERFTR - BEFHETEHSHN of the credit.
R 5 AAZE o
ATHREBEETZEBANEEEZ The Bank undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring
B - BANGEERRDEER at several levels. The credit policies promote early detection of
BERBTEFREIENRIETF - counterparty, industry or product exposures that require special
TEXEMNRR - BEZEEE attention. The Credit Committee oversees the overall portfolio
HEEXH6MEERR - @5 risk as well as individual problem loans and potential problem
FREERRBEEEER loans on a regular basis.

(i) ZEEERAR (i) Retail credit risk
KITHZEEEERR M ERF 2 The Bank’s retail credit policy and approval process are
A e T ERATE B FFELM &l E designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
A/ NFEREESEUNRLS - Z homogeneous, small value transactions in each retail loan
EEERBNEEETZERERRLT category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
RERNMRFENETHRT DT L policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks with
HEEZ - ATRERNBEEHERSE respect to different products and types of customers. The Bank
EMiZER « TEHBEZREFER monitors its own and industry experience to determine and
BEREEFEE - periodically revise product terms and desired customer profiles.

(iii) EREERMZRHE (iii) Credit-related commitments
BEEABNAENSASTENE The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
B AEFEEEERTFREERN contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk involved
SERKBAER - At - BEARZ M in extending loan facilities to customers. These transactions
BRARFHBERRMEERR are, therefore, subject to the same credit application, portfolio
EEHE - HaRFMEFENK - maintenance and collateral requirements as for customers

applying for loans.
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23 HKEBEE 23 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EERMEEE) (a) Credit risk management (continued)

(iv) EERBNEF (iv) Concentrations of credit risk
EERBMERRER—ERZIEHF Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
THME  EEXTEREZNF economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
2 MmzEEEnEEcERRY counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is material in
FITNRBEREASE - REFN relation to the Bank’s total exposures. The Bank does not have
R A PER A B R M B A 72 5IE significant exposure to any individual or group of customers
G AT EEEMBEA  EER or counterparties except for the amount due to the ultimate
PR SHEFHFEERER - holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

(1) =& ERE (1) Maximum exposure
HETETFTEA R mek E b The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet
ERERANERLT @ £EBH date without taking into consideration of any collateral
=azERR  EFREEAE held or other credit enhancements is represented by the
KA Z B IED B E E L HBR carrying amount of each financial assets in the balance
BEEZNERE - ZBRS sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. A
N g summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:
2010 2009
TFRERTTRZE  RRERTT Balances with banks, central banks
R E Ath < B IR and other financial institutions 959,389 716,827
FEFERERTTRIZE « PR Placements with banks, central banks
RITREM S B FRIE and other financial institutions = 41,396
BH5EE Trade bills 19,825 21,134
BEERGEE Trading assets 15,800 15,256
EEERREMIRIE Advances to customers and other
accounts 13,913,837 11,317,909
TR AR A B ) B Amounts due from ultimate holding
BB A &) kI8 company and fellow subsidiaries 4,308,289 5,710,969
AIHEE s SRMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 479,803 1,576,411
BTG IR R H b B R Financial guarantees and other credit
B2 A ER related contingent liabilities 541,292 932,818
B ERH MRS R Loan commitments and other credit
Bz EYE related commitments 2,111,158 1,743,183

22,349,393 22,075,903

62  EFIKTET - 20105558



23 HKEBEE 23 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) EERBEREE) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) EERBWES(E) (iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

2) BHzErEEZ (2) Credit quality of loans and advances
FRITRXEROMETFTEER Advances to bank are only made to bank with good credit
FHSETRE - EEEZN= rating. The credit quality of advances to customers can be
BEESMMT : analysed as follows:

2010 2009
KFEERERE Gross advances to customers
— 3@ ER O IE R E — neither past due nor impaired 13,101,273 10,706,039
—BHBEIERE — past due but not impaired 147,573 102,265
— B (FEE12(0)) — impaired (note 12(c)) 26,673 26,307

13,275,519 10,834,611

Hep Of which:
HEERRRE Gross advances to customers
— 14 A% — Grade 1: Pass 13,231,656 10,791,648
— 28 HFRIEEER — Grade 2: Special mention 17,190 16,656
—38% : TNEIEE — Grade 3: Substandard 24,577 24,554
— 4% BEEIRIE — Grade 4: Doubtful 250 446
—5#4% : Bk — Grade 5: Loss 1,846 1,307
13,275,519 10,834,611
ATEBBREDTESERMS The Bank classifies the loans and advances in accordance
R ER Y FEIEEI D &R o with the loan classification system adopted by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA").
BEEIEREN TP BERRER The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are past
DITEAT due but not impaired is as follows:
2010 2009
BEEIERECEF Gross advances to customers that are
Biasa past due but not impaired
—BHEI3E A AT — past due 3 months or less 146,742 101,909
—6f& A kA ~E3{E A — 6 months or less but over
PA E 3 months - 135
— 1A NE6E A - 1 year or less but over 6 months 831 221
147,573 102,265
2010512 A318 @ A7 & As at 31 December 2010, there were no advances to
5 FEEE R T IR E B HAstORL customers that would be past due or impaired had the
BERNEFER(2009%F : &) - terms not been renegotiated (2009: Nil).

BANCO WENG HANG, S.A. « Annual Report 2010 63



MEHE R

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 HKEBEE 23 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) FERBEEE)
(iv) FERBHESE)
() BEPRRITRAIFEAXUINE

BEENEEEE
MEXZEERREET AR
ATEEFEERRERETRA
—1 - X SHFEBERT
A o A HHE R 5 F RER
B REBEATEERR - BIF
REZB&%E  BAIKRTT
TREERMRE L B &R
Fra¥EMIBBBA R EFFIHE 2 &
a5 o

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

(3) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to

customers and bank

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Bank manages its corporate lending risk and risk
gradings are applied to the counterparties with individual
counterparty limits set. It is the Bank’s credit policy not to
invest debt securities that are below the grading of BBB
by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services or their equivalents
unless it is approved by the Credit Committee.

REEH - RRERFTREE At the balance sheet date, the credit quality of investment
1 AE BB 2T A AR 75 Bk H S5 [R] 4 in debt securities analysed by designation of external credit
BREEMDNT 2 EEES= assessment institution, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
BEEWT or their equivalents, is as follows:
2010 2009
AAA AAA 43,202 10,746
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 301,985 1,421,739
A-EA+ A-to A+ 53,998 77,279
BN A- Lower than A— 24,363 15,693
423,548 1,525,457
(4) A M= AEH (4) Collateral and other credit enhancements

64

AOTREFPERMIT A MER
1B b EEZMER R
FRREREHARNERR

PBREFRENEREET
¥ A R 5 R E A (S AR T

The Bank holds collateral against advances to customers
in the form of mortgages over property, other registered
securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other credit
enhancements held against past due but not impaired

WA EEMETAT financial assets is as follows:
2010 2009
PUEEBIERE Y £ AZEMEF Fair value of collateral and other credit
AzEMBLREMERIEZ  enhancements held against financial
NI EE assets that are past due but not
impaired 214,750 202,886

EeBMEERCEERRED D
EEEFRBATRKEI10E
14 IR ©

BPIKZERIT » 20105 F 3R

Analysis of credit risk concentration by the economic sector
of the respective financial assets is disclosed in notes 10 to
14.
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(b) ABELEREE

23 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management

nBECRABRIEREERENENEE
EREXRENIMERRER - AITEFT
InBELERERBK - BAREMNR
RIEPEEEFT RARBES ©

nBECHAEREERBEEERES
MHER EERBEERZEGHS
REERE WA - RREE WK
EENEMAIZE RS E SRR ER
HENALTHEK  AEEERDESR
REREH  FHRERESNRBE
SHRREERF  #5  AEREERY
Bell  AREZERDHESRRE
EipiE - EESERDE B kR
REBR  #FEBEERASESRBRAS
MFEIR  YHEFRABESEREE
BERBREERBAESREREZR
B A

RAB-—REEXBTINESTFE K
HAEARPUNEES  TEELAR
TTREFEMS - I RITRERT
RHEAEE - ABRMERREER
REESFEXR - AT NEHMRARBES
IRSESTE RIS, - LAREIRES ZIRFF 78
RRBEL - UTZATTEREERE
BHROM RN EE R HBERE
Hi A BARSZR -

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank’s inability to fund an increase
in assets or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Bank has
established liquidity management policies for ensuring adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times.

Liquidity is managed day-to-day by the treasury under the direction
of ALMCO. ALMCO, which comprises personnel from senior
management, treasury function, risk management, financial
management and other business areas that could affect liquidity
risk, is responsible for overseeing the liquidity risk management,
in particular implementation of appropriate liquidity policies and
procedures, identifying, measuring and monitoring liquidity risk, and
control over the liquidity risk management process. The Board of
Directors approves the liquidity risk strategy and policies, maintains
continued awareness of the overall liquidity risk profile, and ensures
liquidity risk is adequately managed and controlled by senior
management within the established risk management framework.

To cater for short term funding requirements during ordinary course
of business, sufficient liquid assets are held and also access to the
interbank market is maintained. In addition, adequate standby
facilities are maintained in order to meet any unexpected and
material cash outflow. The Bank also performs regular stress tests
on its liquidity position to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained
at all times. The following tables set out the detail of the analysis
of the Bank’s material assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining periods at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.
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23 M EREE®
(b) HEBESAREE(H)
() RERAERBLEHEAZAHIY
B 1k 2 A 4 84 50 R 81 5 B S8R 2 47

23 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the

& contractual maturity date
2010
1MBANME  3EALE 1EHE
38R A B1£ER {B5F R
Over Over Over
BIEER AR 1month  3months 1 year SENLE
Repayable Within ~ but within  but within  but within Over it g
on demand 1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Undated Total
BE Asset
Re RERHIRE - Cash and balances with
RRETRELM banks, central banks and
SRKETE other financial institutions 1,366,446 - - - - - - 1,366,446
EREHRTRZE - Placements with banks,
RREBTRELM central banks and other
CREENE finandial institutions - - - - - - - =
B55E Trade bills 3,340 8,055 8,430 - - - - 19,825
EERRAE Trading assets - - - - - - 15,800 15,800
ZFEH Advances to customers 196,083 391,081 928263  2,205444  4,449205 5,091,655 - 13,261,731
RITFEER Advances to bank - - - 476,940 - - - 476,940
FHSEERATR Amounts due from ultimate
HItBARZE holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 45,223 3,046,700 427,872 788,494 - - - 4,308,289
A HE S REE Available-for-sale financial
assets - 221,993 79,991 - 78,362 43,202 56,255 479,803
HinEE Other assets 154,377 19,178 915 440 - 257 365,946 501,113
HEE Total assets 1,765,469 3,687,007 1,445,471 3,471,318 4,527,567 5,135,114 438,001 20,469,947
afs Liabilities
RITAZE - PRFATR Deposits and balances of
HiteRlE TR banks, central banks and
other financial institutions 6,204 - - - - - - 6,204
RPAR T8 #ER  Curent, fixed, savings and
HibFT other deposits of customers 10,569,846 3,505,616 1,889,461 1,276,782 131,860 17 - 17,373,682
EERLAR Trading liabilities - - - - - - 32001 32,001
ENSEERATR Amounts due to ultimate
HWBLR 7 holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 771 243,507 320,183 587,121 - - - 1,151,588
HitngfE Other liabilities 202,058 4,920 11,318 62,539 23,070 - 12 303,917
melR Totalliabllities 10778885 3,734,043 222092 1926442 = 154930 117 32,013 18,867,392
F(8fE) EEZE Net (liability)/asset gap (9,013,416)  (67,036)  (775,491) 1,544,876 4,372,637 5,134,997 405,988 1,602,555
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the

RAE) contractual maturity date (continued)
2009
MAARE  3EAME 1E 4 E
B3fE AR BIER B5ER
Over QOver Over
AR EAR Tmonth 3 months 1 year SEE
Repayable Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin ~ but within QOver mH b
on demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Undated Total
BE Asset
Re RERFIRE - Cash and balances with
HRRAT IR E At banks, central banks and
TREETE other financial institutions 995,930 - - - - - - 995,930
TEHERETRE - Placements with banks,
HRRAT IR ELAt central banks and other
CRIMIETE finandial institutions - - - 41,396 - - - 41,396
BHRE Trade bills 6,275 1,982 12,877 - - - - 21,134
EERRAE Trading assets = = = = = = 15,256 15,256
RPER Advances to customers 159,524 344,907 359,013 1,593352 4,766,191 3,597,088 - 10,820,075
ROREEH Advances to bank - - - 315,517 - - - 315,517
FHSEERAFR Amounts due from ultimate
HINBARZE holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 24423 2,850,228  1,233579 1,602,739 - - - 5,710,969
A HE S REE Available-for-sale financial
assets - 395,690 356,973 677,676 53,735 41,382 50,955 1,576,411
AfEE Other assets 126,679 16,360 38 2,613 - - 384185 529875
BEE Total assets 1,312,831 3,609,167 1,962,480 4233293 4,819,926 3,638,470 450,396 20,026,563
a1 Liabilities
RITAZE - PRFATR Deposits and balances of
HiteRlE TR banks, central banks and
other financial institutions 26,737 - - - - - - 26,737
REER T8 @FER  Current, fixed, savings and
Hffzak other deposits of customers 9,701,704 4,452,118 2,499,647 772,846 168,139 222 - 17,594,676
BEERBARE Trading liabilities - - - - - - 19,39 19,39
N SEERAR R Amounts due to ultimate
HWBLAR holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 779 23,180 676 515,017 - - - 539,652
HipaE Other liabilities 194,139 2,253 2,970 51,525 22,743 - 12 273,642
BRE Totllabiites 9923350 4471551 2503293 1339388 19082 22 19408 18454103
F(8f) EEEE Net (liability)/asset gap (8610528)  (868,384)  (540,813) 2,893,905 4,629,044 3638248 430988 1,572,460
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(i) ZBAWIMAKFTEZES KR
TRIITAFTNEE B RIESTES
RABRERNFE  BANMS
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BRAEK NS BEIMmFIR

23 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The cash flows payable by the Bank for the non-derivative
financial liabilities including interest payable that will be settled
by remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date
are presented in the following table. The amounts disclosed
are based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Interest
payable in respect of term non-derivative financial liabilities is
reported based on contractual interest payment date.

2010
MARME  3EAML 1ERE
{B3f8A R ENES B5% R
Over Over Over
A 118AR 1month 3 months 1 year SENE
Repayable Within ~ butwithin  butwithin  but within Over g
on demand 1 month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
ETEERMAE Non-derivative financial liabilities
SR1TR%E - PRETR  Deposits and balances of banks, central
Hit S RgE 250 banks and other financial institutions 6,204 - - - - - 6,204
KPR E8 - @ER  Current, fixed, savings and other
HibiEa deposits of customers 10569,846 3511843 1903781 1289090 163,803 M7 17,438,480
PTESRTA Interest payable on derivative financial
FERAE instruments - 2,193 2,413 12,712 17,837 6,180 41,395
ENSEERATR Amounts due to ultimate holding
HBARZER company and fellow subsidiaries 7 243,527 320,337 590,342 - - 1,154,983
Hitng (& Other liabilities 202,058 - - 58,433 - - 260,491
10,778,885 3,757,563 2,226,531 1,950,637 181,640 6,297 18,901,553
KRR SR Unrecognised loan commitments 839,959 89,841 85,153 678,586 417,619 - 2,111,158
fIETARSRE Derivative cash flows
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments
(B%e%) (notional amount)
N - total inflow - 7,731 1,007,369 2,133 - - 1,017,233
— @i - total outflow - 7761 1,007,429 2,166 - - 1,017,35%
i Net outflow - (30) (60) (33) - - (123)
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

() (continued)
2009
1MEANE  3EAMNE 150
E3EAA [ERE B5ER
Over Over Over
S =e 1EAR 1 month 3 months 1 year SELA
Repayable Within but within but within but within QOver ]
on demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
FTEERAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
SR1TRA%E - FRETR  Deposits and balances of banks, central
HitemgE 55 banks and other financial institutions 26,737 = = = = = 26,737
KPR EH - @ER  Current, fixed, savings and other
HibFT deposits of customers 9,701,704 4,455,011 2,504,135 776,976 207,998 222 17,646,046
PTESBTEEMFE  Interest payable on derivative financial
instruments - 872 1,287 6,478 14,293 7,725 30,655
ENSREERATR Amounts due to ultimate holding
HiBARZFR company and fellow subsidiaries 779 23,181 676 518,090 = = 542,726
HibgfE Other liabilities 194,139 = = 50,897 = = 245,036
9,923,359 4,479,064 2,506,098 1,352,441 222,291 7,947 18,491,200
KA A E Unrecognised loan commitments 1,015,923 54,288 101,389 244,356 327,227 = 1,743,183
TEIRRESRE Derivative cash flows
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments
(%528) (notional amount)
—&n - total inflow - 4,755 1,000,000 4,586 - - 1,009,341
— @ - total outflow - 4,906 1,000,000 4,775 - - 1,009,681
e yintas Net outflow = (151) = (189) = = (340)
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23 Financial risk management (continued)

(0

Interest rate risk management

The Bank’s interest rate positions arise from treasury and commercial
banking activities. Interest rate risk primarily results from the timing
differences in the repricing of interest-bearing assets, liabilities and
commitments. It also relates to positions from non-interest bearing
liabilities including shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as
well as from certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Interest rate risk
is managed by the Financial Management Division within limits
approved by the Board. The Bank also uses interest rate swaps and
other derivatives to manage interest rate risk.

The Bank uses the Price Value of a Basis Point (“PVBP")
measurement to monitor and limit its interest rate risk exposure.
PVBP is a technique involving the calculation of the change in
present value of a financial instrument or a portfolio of instruments
due to a change of one basis point in interest rates. It also provides
a quick tool to evaluate the impact on profit and loss due to a basis
point movement in interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity set out below is for risk management
reported to ALMCO only in simplified scenario. Actual changes in
the Bank's profit before tax resulting from the change in interest
rates may differ from the result of the sensitivity analysis. The effect
on interest-bearing financial instruments and interest rate swaps has
been included in this calculation.

RATERBLAT
A, R
Increase/(decrease)
in Bank’s profit before tax
2010 2009
EFF10E 2, Increase in 10 basis points 1,854 976
TRE10E 2, Decrease in 10 basis points (1,854) (976)

EENENEEREI2REESRE &
FERRESMAERRE METEEER
MEE - EBUNERBHEEREE

BREEEE -

BMPIKFRIT « 2010FF3

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the deployment
of non-interest bearing liabilities, including shareholders’ funds
and current accounts, as well as from certain fixed rate loans and
liabilities. Structural interest rate risk is monitored by ALMCO.
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk management (continued)
The following tables indicate the expected next repricing date for

the assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

2010
3EAMULE 10 E
B1FR  B55R
Over Over RE
3fAA 3 months 1year  5FBLE Non-
Within but within but within Over interest =5
3 months 1year 5 year 5 years bearing Total
BE Assets
RE KIFHRERITRIZE Cash and balances with banks,
RRBITREMSE central banks and other
AR financial institutions 811,089 - - - 555357 1,366,446
TEERFHURTTRIZE Placements with banks,
R ERTT R E A central banks and other
SRR financial institutions - - - = = =
e ESE Trade bills 19,825 - - - - 19,825
BERREE Trading assets - - - - 15,800 15,800
BEFEFRREMARE Advances to customers and
other accounts 11,071,437 968,005 1,066,891 142,514 188,050 13,436,897
RITAEER Advances to bank - 476,940 - - - 476,940
TFHESER AR R Amounts due from ultimate
HIT B R RIFIE holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 3,579,703 685,253 - - 43,333 4,308,289
AftiHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 301,985 - 78,361 99,457 - 479,803
HinEE Other - - - - 365947 365,947
BEE Total assets 15,784,039 2,130,198 1,145,252 241,971 1,168,487 20,469,947
=1 Liabilities
$RITEZE « PRIRTTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
Hi S a2 70 central banks and other
financial institutions = - - - 6,204 6,204
PR EH - fE  Current, fixed, savings and
REMAFR other deposits of customers 14,606,819 1,276,781 132,079 150 1,357,853 17,373,682
BEARARE Trading liabilities - - - - 32,001 32,001
ERT B IERR R B K% Amounts due to ultimate holding
HtB AR 2FR company and fellow subsidiaries 559,456 587,100 - - 5032 1,151,588
Hith &g Others - - - - 303917 303,917
mafE Total liabilities 15,166,275 1,863,881 132,079 150 1,705,007 18,867,392
PTETAE(RITERA) Derivatives (in the banking book)
R/(R)e%E net long/(short) position
L (Eme®) (notional amount) - - - - - -
FRGBELE Interest rate sensitivity gap 617,764 266317 1,013,173 241,821  (536,520) 1,602,555
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk management (continued)

2009
A E 14 BAE
B1FER {B5F R
Over Over BB
AR 3 months Tyear  S5FME Non-
Within  but within  but within Over interest =
3 months 1 year 5 year 5 years bearing Total
BE Assets
B e RIFHRITRZE Cash and balances with banks,
RRFITREMS central banks and other
BT financial institutions 509,413 - - ~ 486517 995,930
TEHFHERTTRIZE Placements with banks,
RRRITREME central banks and other
AR TIR financial institutions - 41,396 = = = 41,396
EOES Trade bills 21,134 - - = = 21,134
BEERRAE Trading assets - - - - 15,256 15,256
ZEEERREMARE Advances to customers and
other accounts 9,997,279 138,071 564,784 108,168 194,090 11,002,392
RITAZESRK Advances to bank - 315517 - - - 315517
FREEER R R R Amounts due from ultimate
HItB R RHE holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 4,184,144 1,498,147 - - 28,678 5,710,969
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 786,954 643,385 53,735 41,382 50,955 1,576,411
HinEE Others - - - - 347,558 347,558
BEE Total assets 15,498,924 2,636,516 618,519 149,550 1,123,054 20,026,563
aE Liabilities
$RITMEIZE - PRIRTTR.  Deposits and balances of banks,
Hi S i 270 central banks and other
financial institutions - - - - 26,737 26,737
BEMER T4 &  Current, fixed, savings and
REMFR other deposits of customers 15,556,838 772,845 168,299 258 1,096,436 17,594,676
BEERRAR Trading liabilities = = = = 19,396 19,396
R AR R A ) Amounts due to ultimate holding
HMB AR ZER company and fellow subsidiaries 22,453 515,000 - - 2,199 539,652
Hip&fE Others - - - - 273,642 273,642
Bafrk Total liabilities 15,579,291 1,287,845 168,299 258 1,418,410 18,454,103
PTETE(RITERA) Derivatives (in the banking book)
&/(R)%%E net long/(short) position
_EEe®) (notionalamount) - - - - -
MEGREZEE Interest rate sensitivity gap (80,367) 1,348,671 450,220 149,292 (295,356) 1,572,460
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk management (continued)
The following table indicates the effective interest rates for the year:

2010 2009
TEHATFIERTTRIZE « R RERTT R Placement with banks, central banks
H{th & mhisE 708 and other financial institutions 1.13% 1.17%
B5EEREFER Trade bills and advances to
customers 2.61% 3.01%
STREE Financial assets 0.90% 0.77%
RITRIZE ~ FRRERTT R E A Deposits and balances of banks,
T RIKTE 2 77K central banks and other financial
institutions 0.49% 1.56%
BEEER Deposits from customers 0.36% 0.42%
BEXREBER (d) Currency risk management

RITHOSME R IR B SME B B M X IR
IR - ANINERREEMEDRE
REFSTENRBAEE -

MR AITARMN EE KRB B2 AR
¥ ABELETAEE mE=RE%H
B AHESETR/NITHFEERE
KRR - ATARGEERZRAR

The Bank’s foreign exchange positions arise from foreign exchange
dealing, commercial banking operations. All foreign exchange
positions are managed by the Treasury Department within limits
approved by the Board of Directors.

The directors do not consider the Bank to have significant foreign
currency risk as the majority of the Bank’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Macau patacas, Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars, which are pegged to each other. The exposure at the
balance sheet date was as follows:

2010
R Pt EY Hith a5
MOP HKD usD Others Total
BEE Total assets 27.6% 56.2% 8.8% 7.4% 100%
BAa’k Total liabilities 31.1% 52.7% 8.7% 7.5% 100%
R Net position (3.5)% 3.5% 0.1% 0.1)% =
2009
il Pt T HAtb A%
MOP HKD usD Others Total
BEE Total assets 25.4% 60.1% 7.5% 7.0% 100%
BAaR Total liabilities 28.8% 56.9% 7.3% 7.0% 100%
R Net position (3.4)% 32% 0.2% - -
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(e) Capital management

The Bank's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of the Bank's business and to meet the statutory capital
adequacy ratio. In addition to meeting the AMCM requirements
and the HKMA requirements on group basis for its ultimate holding
company, the Bank'’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Bank actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions. The amount of minimum capital requirements
held for credit, market and operational risks is calculated in
accordance with the Basel Il requirements under AMCM and HKMA
regulation.

Capital is allocated to the various activities of the Bank depending
on the risk taken by each business division. The Bank is subject to
the capital requirements of the AMCM and the HKMA for their
regulatory supervision purposes. The Bank has complied with all
externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year ended
31 December 2010 and 2009 and are well above the minimum
required ratio set by the AMCM and HKMA.

24 Fair values
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value on an ongoing basis
include trading assets and liabilities and financial instruments
classified as available-for-sale.

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of
the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

(i) Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market
for an identical instrument.

(i) Level 2: Valuation technique based on observable inputs,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.
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24 Fair values (continued)
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(iii) Level 3: Valuation technique using significant unobservable
inputs. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable
market data and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the
instruments.

Fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For
all other financial instruments that are not traded in the active
markets, the Bank determines fair values using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value of expected future
cash flows and discounted cash flow models based on “no-arbitrage”
principles, standard option pricing models across the industry for
vanilla derivative products. The objective of valuation techniques is
to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the
financial instrument at the reporting date that would have been
determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable market
data. Hence, the reliability of the fair values measurement is high.
However, certain financial instruments are valued on the basis of one
or more significant market inputs that are not observable. The fair
value derived is more judgemental. “Not observable” does not mean
there is absolutely no market data available but there is little or no
current market data available from which to determine the level at
which an arm’s length transaction would likely occur. Examples of
observable inputs include foreign exchange spot and forward rates,
benchmark interest rate curves and volatility surfaces for commonly
traded option products. Examples of unobservable inputs include
volatility surfaces for less commonly traded option products and
correlations between market factors.

Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces
the need for management judgement and estimation and also
reduces the valuation uncertainty associated with determination
of fair values. The availability varies depending on the products
and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses the broker pricing
service, which adopts proprietary valuation models, as inputs to a
fair value measurement. These models usually are developed from
recognised valuation models across the industry with some or all of
the inputs into these models being unobservable in the market.

Fair values are subject to a control framework that aims to ensure
that they are either determined, or validated, by a function
independent of the risk-taker. To this end, ultimate responsibility for
the determination of fair values lies with Middle Office. Middle Office
establishes procedures governing valuation, and is responsible for
ensuring that these comply with all relevant accounting standards.
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24 A EE#) 24 Fair values (continued)

(a) AT EEIEZEMIA(E) (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
TREZATFEEELRERIANZ S The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value
HAEDMELAEAURATEEFEZ at the balance sheet date according to the level in the fair value
SRITA : hierarchy into which they are categorised:

2010
F1ZER F2ZER H3IEM a3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE Assets
BEABREE Trading assets
—BERSENESRIE  — Positive fair values of derivative
ZIERAFEE financial instruments held
for trading - 15,800 - 15,800
A EEHE SR EE Available-for-sale financial assets
—BES — Treasury bills = 301,985 = 301,985
— H b E5ES — Other debt securities 69,209 52,354 - 121,563
—KRE — Equity securities - 9,804 12,306 22,110
69,209 364,143 12,306 445,658
aE Liabilities
BERARARE Trading liabilities
—EERASRTESRBTEA — Negative fair values of derivative
=N financial instruments held
for trading - 32,001 - 32,001
2009
FI1ER F2ER FIER =)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
BERABREE Trading assets
—BERBITESFIT A - Positive fair values of derivative
ZIEATEE financial instruments held for
trading = 15,256 = 15,256
AIEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
— BN ES — Treasury bills = 1,355,285 = 1,355,285
—H Mt (EEES — Other debt securities 107,658 38,970 23,544 170,172
—RE — Equity securities = 11,709 = 11,709
107,658 1,405,964 23,544 1,537,166
=L Liabilities
BSEARARE Trading liabilities
—EBEEMBITESBIE - Negative fair values of derivative
ZBRNFEE financial instruments held for
trading — 19,396 — 19,396
RAFEE  SRIAETEEAFEERN During the year, there were no significant transfer of financial
FNEHEFEIEL 7 BEHEAET o instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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24 A EEE) 24 Fair values (continued)

(a) BATEEIERZ2SMIA(E) (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
TRITEAFEBEEIZRZATER The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
T2 VAT HI RS o 2 $TER K - balance to the ending balance for fair value measurements in Level 3

of the fair value hierarchy:

2010 2009
At SHE A EHE
SREE TREE
Available for Available for
sale financial sale financial
assets assets
BE Assets
1A B &R At 1 January 23,544 23,947
BREEEILER Transfers into Level 3 12,306 -
EREEHREEERZ Changes in fair value recognised in
NEEEED investment revaluation reserve = (403)
BIHR 2 B E S Maturity of debt security (23,544) -
12 A31B&% At 31 December 12,306 23,544
REEBMIFEETARE Total losses for the year included in
BhiFEB 2 FEEEESE investment revaluation reserve for
assets held at the balance sheet date - (403)
KEERA - HNEAERIFE AT EEEIE L During the year, valuation report issued by an external valuer
MREKLEEHEERS - Bt - %8 became available on an unquoted available-for-sale equity
B TR ER2010F 12 A31HZ AFE investment. Accordingly, such investment is stated at fair value as at
Bk - 31 December 2010.
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24 NEEE#)

24 Fair values (continued)

(a) ZEATEEIIRZERMTIAGE)
AEZETABENBRESHEREN
TZABBREMELE 2FE

EREBERT  FHEESBTARFER
FTAMMERE - ERMEaNERERYT
FEBEARTANENABRTERS
B - IIFKBEMTERMISER -
TRINIFESEIEEN D FEEHRE
BRERAEARATARSBERRMEL
MIE ~ B10%MEENILITEE -

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to
reasonably possible alternatives:

The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances,
measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument and are not based on observable
market data. The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values
in Level 3 due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10 per cent of
change in fair value to reasonably possible alternative assumptions.

2010 2009
RRARR R AE [ B AR PR A 2
Reflected in equity Reflected in equity
BRES Nz - BHEE =L
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable

changes changes changes changes
A ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
—HEBHES — Other debt securities - - 2,354 (2,354)
—BE — Equity securities 1,231 (1,231) = -

(b) kELAFEEINRNESHRITENDF
BE
AR AT EEIEN SR T AR
HA201012 A31H %2009412 A 31
HEHEAFEEHRENRZ SBHIER -

25 EENATIRRAERAT
2010128310 - EERABATHNEER
DRI REERIER AT BKFRITERAR -

—HKETZEEMKIL R ETEORAFE - ZAA
TMREL T AIE DRGSR
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(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value
All financial instruments not stated at fair value are stated at
amounts not materially different from their fair value at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

25 Immediate parent and ultimate controlling
party
At 31 December 2010, the directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Bank to be Wing Hang Bank, Limited,
which is incorporated and listed in Hong Kong. This entity produces
financial statements available for public use.
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The Bank’s statutory financial statements were prepared in
accordance with Macau Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS")
as set out in Administrative Regulation no. 25/2005 of the Macau
Special Administrative Region. MFRS were constituted by the direct
adoption of certain International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS") effective at the time of enactment of the Administrative
Regulation. The Bank also prepares a separate set of audited financial
statements in accordance with IFRS. The directors consider that there
is no significant difference between the adopting of MFRS or IFRS on
the Bank's financial position and operating results for the year ended
31 December 2010.
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Head Office

Ho Lan Un Branch
Hong Kai Si Branch
San Kiu Branch
Hak Sa Van Branch
Toi San Branch

241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro

3D Avenida do Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida
85 Avenida Horta e Costa

19-21 Estrada de Adolfo Loureiro

32C-F Estrada de Marginal do Hipodromo

338 Avenida de A.T. Barbosa

Kou Tei Vu Kai Branch 29A Rua Pedro Coutinho R/C

lao Hon Branch

195 Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon

Ho Pin San Kai Branch 75-79 Rua Almirante Sergio

San Hau On Branch
StarWorld Hotel
Branch

Flower City Branch

286 Almeida Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao R/C

Shop A, Level 2, StarWorld Hotel, Avenida de
Amizade

356-366 R/C, Rua de Evora, Edif. Lei Fung, Taipa
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